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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Good morning. As I

          3  am sure most of you know by now, I am Kathryn Freed,

          4  I chair the Contracts Committee and I would like to

          5  begin by recognizing my colleagues, and initially we

          6  have a brand new colleague who I want to welcome

          7  this morning, and welcome to the Committee. Eva

          8  Moskowitz, who we are very glad won her most recent

          9  election. Congratulations and welcome aboard.

         10                 And to her right is Council Member

         11  Margarita Lopez, and to her left, and my far left is

         12  Council Member Tracy Boyland. And we will be joined

         13  by other Council members as the day goes on. As you

         14  probably noticed as we were switching rooms, there

         15  are several hearings going on at the same time.

         16                 Anyway, today's hearing will provide

         17  a discussion into Intro. 523-A. This legislation

         18  would require quality based selection procurement

         19  for architectural and engineering services by City

         20  agencies.

         21                 Unlike the procurement of goods and

         22  certain services, the selection for professional and

         23  architectural and engineering firms in a manner

         24  where price is the prime factor for critical

         25  judgment services appears not to serve the best

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  interests of the public or the city agencies that

          3  procure them.

          4                 The principle reasons for supporting

          5  the City's need for quality-based selection

          6  legislation is the lack of definitive scope involved

          7  in projects involving architectural and engineering

          8  services at the time the selection is made.

          9                 The quality-based selection offers

         10  two distinct advantages to the citizens of the City.

         11  First, health and safety needs related to a project

         12  are assured, since the most qualified architectural

         13  and engineering firm is selected; and, secondly, the

         14  lowest total cost is assured through the appropriate

         15  level of study performed by the most qualified firm;

         16  therefore, it would be far more beneficial to first

         17  make the selection of an architectural engineering

         18  firm based on their qualifications, and then discuss

         19  the price once both parties have reviewed in detail

         20  what specifics are involved in a particular project.

         21                 Once the necessary details of the

         22  scope of the work have been fully discussed, the

         23  agency would then make its own evaluation and

         24  judgment as to a fair price. The parties can agree

         25  on a price, the contract is awarded without any
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          2  further consideration of proposals of other

          3  competing firms. If, however, a fair price cannot be

          4  negotiated to the satisfaction of the agency,

          5  negotiations would then commence with the next

          6  highest qualified firm.

          7                 Qualification-based selection assures

          8  the acquisition of the highest expertise and

          9  knowledge through the choice of the most capable

         10  professional firms while permitting the City to

         11  secure these services at a fair and reasonable cost.

         12                 Currently the federal government in

         13  27 states, including the State of New York, have

         14  adopted similar quality-based selection legislation.

         15  Witnesses invited to testify today include

         16  representatives from the Mayor's Office of

         17  Contracts, the Policy Procurement Board, the

         18  municipal engineers of the City of New York, the New

         19  York State Society of Professional Engineers and the

         20  New York Association of Consulting Engineers, and

         21  members from Local 375.

         22                 Before we hear testimony, I will

         23  remind you that it is the practice of this Committee

         24  to swear in all witnesses. And before I do call in

         25  our first witness, I just want a quick additional
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          2  statement to say that this hearing has been

          3  obviously one that has raised a lot of interest and

          4  if you look at the number of people in the room

          5  today, you will see that it is clearly a subject

          6  that there is massive amounts of interest in.

          7                 My office and my Counsel, Andrew

          8  Neuman, have been notified over the last year, year

          9  and a half, by numerous firms and agencies who

         10  wanted this hearing, and one of the reasons I am

         11  co-priming this legislation is I think it is a very

         12  necessary legislation. We probably have a few kinks

         13  to get out of the proposed legislation, but we think

         14  today's hearing goes a long way towards pushing for

         15  that and getting the City on-board with still

         16  getting the most qualified engineering and

         17  architectural firms while doing it at the lowest

         18  price, sort of the best bang for our buck, and still

         19  ensure that we also get the highest quality

         20  services.

         21                 So, having said that, the other

         22  co-sponsor of this is Council Member Leffler, who

         23  could not be here today, so he has asked that his

         24  aid or chief of staff could make a comment for him.

         25                 So, Robert Benfatto, of course, since
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          2  you are testifying, if you will raise your right

          3  hand:

          4                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MR. BENFATTO: Yes.

          7                 MR. FOSTER: I do.

          8                 MR. SERVEDIO: I do.

          9                 MS. NAROV: I do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great. So, state

         11  your name and position for the record and please

         12  proceed.

         13                 MR. BENFATTO: Good morning. Thank

         14  you, Councilwoman.

         15                 My name is Robert J. Benfatto. I am

         16  Legislative Counsel to City Councilman Sheldon

         17  Leffler, who is one of the co-primes with

         18  Councilwoman Freed on this bill. And the Councilman

         19  actually will be here later on today, but he had an

         20  event at 10:00 this morning in his district, and he

         21  asked me to give just a brief opening statement.

         22                 The Councilman pretty much said what

         23  Councilwoman Freed said, that currently all

         24  contracts for architectural and engineering services

         25  of City agencies today are awarded on the basis of
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          2  competitive bidding where price is the primary if

          3  not sole factor.

          4                 This type of procurement for

          5  essentially professional services, the Councilman

          6  believes, is not in the best interest of the public,

          7  nor the agencies that do the procuring for the City.

          8                 The Councilman introduced this

          9  legislation with Council Member Freed because he

         10  believes the City should seek to select the best

         11  qualified firm first, and then discuss the price at

         12  a later date.

         13                 For example, the American Bar

         14  Association in its model procurement code and this

         15  bill suggests looking at the qualifications, the

         16  competence and the availability of three best

         17  qualified firms initially, and then negotiate a

         18  price later with the firm that is found best

         19  qualified.

         20                 Price is an essential component in

         21  contracting out for work but should come later on in

         22  the process because it is important that all parties

         23  involved review in detail what is involved in the

         24  work being contracted out for.

         25                 Only after the overall details of the
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          2  job required have been fully addressed and

          3  comprehended should the price come into play. At

          4  this point the firm or individual seeking the job

          5  can propose a fee. If the fee is fair and

          6  reasonable, that firm or individual will be hired.

          7  If not, negotiations of other firms can commence.

          8                 In fact, certain individuals high up

          9  in City agencies have suggested to the Councilman,

         10  that we even consider suggestions perhaps that the

         11  contracting city agency consider the three best

         12  qualified firms or individuals and see which one of

         13  them has the fairest and most reasonable price.

         14                 The point is we want to hire

         15  businesses that will complete the job on time, for

         16  the price agreed to, and do quality work.

         17                 The Councilman points out that both

         18  the federal government and the state government have

         19  recognized that selections for professional design

         20  services should be made on the best qualified basis

         21  for each project. He believes New York City deserves

         22  no less.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 The first panel that we are calling

          3  up today, and we will be calling people up in panels

          4  as much as possible because of the large amount of

          5  witnesses, will be the consulting engineers.

          6                 New York Association of Consulting

          7  Engineers. And if there is anyone else who is also

          8  testifying, if they could all come up now, and then

          9  we will get you sworn in and we will get your names

         10  on the record.

         11                 Okay, if you would raise your right

         12  hands. Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole

         13  truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. HAGADORN: I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Terrific.

         16                 As you testify, just state your name

         17  and position and then please proceed.

         18                 MR. HAGADORN: Honorable members of

         19  the City Council, my name is Robert Hagadorn. I am a

         20  board member of the New York Association of

         21  Consulting Engineers, and also president of Hazen

         22  and Sawyer, a 450-person civil environmental

         23  engineering firm with half of our staff in our

         24  corporate headquarters here in Manhattan. I am here

         25  on behalf of the NYACE to support the proposed
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          2  legislation.

          3                 In brief, we are an association of

          4  metropolitan area consulting engineering firms that

          5  promotes professional practices and interfaces with

          6  public entities on behalf of its members. The

          7  Association includes the largest engineering firms

          8  in the state and some of the largest in the country

          9  and the world. Our firms employ over 15,000 staff

         10  and engineer $10 billion worth of construction in

         11  the City each year.

         12                 We strongly urge the Committee to

         13  support the legislation as it is clearly in the best

         14  interest of New Yorkers.

         15                 There are two principle arguments in

         16  favor of QBS, as opposed to selection with

         17  consideration of the lowest price. First, is that it

         18  clearly provides lowest lifecycle cost for the

         19  taxpayers of New York City.

         20                 Dunns, a leading construction

         21  industry publication, reports that design cost is

         22  less than one percent of the total life cycle cost.

         23  Cost competition may lead to less than the best

         24  design solutions because of the development of fewer

         25  alternatives, less complete construction bid
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          2  documents, and adversarial relationships between the

          3  City and your consultants because of inadequate

          4  budget for proper coordination.

          5                 Cost competition leads to the higher

          6  use of subcontractors and the use of more junior

          7  staff.

          8                 In addition, there are some highly

          9  competent national firms that limit their efforts to

         10  work in New York because of cost competition for

         11  assignments.

         12                 The second argument in favor of QBS

         13  is the fact that engineering services have a very

         14  direct impact on human health and safety and cost

         15  competition detracts from the quality of the work

         16  for the reasons described previously. Our firms

         17  design bridges, highways, water treatment plants and

         18  other critical facilities.

         19                 A brief comment on the status of QBS

         20  around the US, and some of this is in the

         21  legislation, the US government, over 40 states,

         22  including New York and hundreds of municipalities

         23  have legislation acquiring QBS. In January of last

         24  year, Governor Whitman of New Jersey signed

         25  legislation mandating QBS.
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          2                 Some very brief comments on the

          3  concerns that have been raised about QBS. First,

          4  regarding fair pricing.

          5                 QBS involves a negotiation with the

          6  top rank firm to achieve a fair and reasonable

          7  price. If these negotiations are not successful,

          8  negotiations are conducted with the second rank

          9  firm. Fair market value is therefore achieved under

         10  the QBS system.

         11                 This results in an appropriate fee in

         12  light of the complexity of the work and a fair price

         13  for the City.

         14                 Secondly, regarding procurement

         15  delays, another issue of current concern. The

         16  negotiation process is supported by the experience

         17  of the technical staff of the City's Departments,

         18  and may, as with the New Jersey QBS legislation, be

         19  supported by the use of the cost proposals of the

         20  runner-up firms. QBS therefore involves no

         21  inordinate delays.

         22                 Regarding the potential for

         23  improprieties under this system, again, an area of

         24  very high interest. The engineering profession

         25  enjoys exemplary track record of minimal
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          2  improprieties and procurement. The profession is

          3  policed by its own members and by the staff of the

          4  City departments.

          5                 The rewards of the QBS system to the

          6  people of New York far outweigh the risks. There are

          7  many elements of business and in fact government

          8  that involve risks and this initiative seems to be

          9  very worthwhile.

         10                 Finally, we would like to emphasize

         11  that this initiative is not part of an effort to

         12  privatize all designs and taking that work away from

         13  the City departments.

         14                 In closing, I would like to report

         15  that we are submitting additional testimony, written

         16  testimony in support of this initiative on behalf of

         17  people who could not be with us today. The first is

         18  from Dr. Delon Hampton, who is the National

         19  President of the American Society of Civil

         20  Engineers; second is from the American Society of

         21  Civil Engineers National Office; third is from Mr.

         22  Joseph T. Miller, former Assistant Commissioner with

         23  New York City DEP; and finally, is testimony in

         24  support from Senator Frank Padavan.

         25                 Thank you very much for your
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          2  consideration.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          4                 I would ask, if people have written

          5  testimony, that they could bring it up with them and

          6  hand it in so that we would have the testimony to

          7  look at when you are speaking.

          8                 Next.

          9                 MS. NAROV: Thank you. My name is

         10  Froma Narov, and I am a principal of Urbitran

         11  Associates, which is a consulting engineering firm,

         12  with headquarters in New York City. We employ close

         13  to 250 people and we do most of our work in the New

         14  York City area. I am also the President elect of the

         15  New York Association of Consulting Engineers, which

         16  as Bob told you encompasses more than 15,000

         17  individuals. I am here to offer my testimony in

         18  favor of this bill. I would like to start by saying

         19  that I don't believe that there is anybody in this

         20  room that would procure medical services based on

         21  the cost. And a medical professional is responsible

         22  for the life of one person at a time. Engineers and

         23  architects are entrusted with thousands of lives on

         24  any given project.

         25                 The QBS, the Quality-Based Selection
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          2  process, is already used successfully by many state

          3  and federal agencies. The reason this process is

          4  successfully used stem from the fact that

          5  engineering services are not a commodity, and

          6  therefore they cannot be quantified, specified and

          7  competitively bid.

          8                 Quality-based selection affords us an

          9  opportunity to provide our clients with our best

         10  talent. It enables us to develop a detailed scope of

         11  work with a client that is specific to any given

         12  project, and is not a cookbook recipe that had

         13  nothing to do that was used on many projects in the

         14  past and had nothing to do with a specific

         15  assignment.

         16                 At the same time it provides the

         17  client with the opportunity to negotiate the fee

         18  with us that is commensurate with the effort that is

         19  necessary in the project, but it is also competitive

         20  because it does take into consideration market

         21  forces.

         22                 Let me tell you that when we get a

         23  design assignment based on competitive bidding, we

         24  do not send a message to the staff saying you cannot

         25  be creative on this project. However, we do make a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  living out of engineering and we have to match the

          3  talent we assign to a project with the fee that is

          4  available or with the budget on the project. And

          5  unfortunately, our best talented people are not our

          6  lowest paid people, and we are struggling here with

          7  market forces where we lose most of our new graduate

          8  engineers to Wall Street, to advanced degrees that

          9  have nothing to do with engineering, so when we

         10  develop a good pool of talent, we have to pay them

         11  decent salaries.

         12                 Competitive bidding does not afford

         13  us to assign those individuals to the project. It

         14  does not mean that we do not comply with basic

         15  engineering standards when we design a project that

         16  we competitively bid. We meet all engineering

         17  requirements, but we do not have the time, nor the

         18  talent that can be used to come up with creative

         19  solutions and essentially save money on a project,

         20  use cutting-edge technology, and as you know, this

         21  is evolving all the time and in the long run a small

         22  saving on design fee costs a lot more in

         23  construction.

         24                 In my testimony I have a number of

         25  examples of how QBS works and how competitive
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          2  bidding does not work. Just briefly, we do not, as a

          3  matter of fact, get awarded all the contracts that

          4  we win on quality-based selection. If we cannot come

          5  to a negotiated fee, and we have one example in our

          6  history where we did not walk away with the project

          7  because we could not come to an agreement with the

          8  client on the fee and scope, we were not very happy

          9  to lose the job, but the client ended up going to

         10  the next qualified bidder with whom they reached an

         11  agreement and they awarded the project to.

         12                 Quality-based selection does not

         13  necessarily mean that we can run, that you are

         14  giving us a carte blanche to run with the fee. We

         15  are dealing with professionals on the other side, on

         16  the client side, and they know very well what design

         17  services go for.

         18                 It does give us an opportunity,

         19  though, to define exactly what you want to get for

         20  the project and how we can give you this.

         21                 I have many examples, and one of them

         22  is listed in my testimony, of how competitive

         23  bidding does not work, where we have seen contracts

         24  that were originally given out for two years that

         25  lasted seven years, that were maybe meeting all of
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          2  the engineering standards but did not have the pool

          3  of talent to properly define quantities and identify

          4  the aspects of the project.

          5                 Finally, I would just like to

          6  reiterate the design fees are generally about six

          7  percent of the cost of construction. A variation of

          8  about ten percent in the design fees may translate

          9  to less than one percent in the total cost of

         10  construction.

         11                 If we could properly apply our people

         12  to projects, we could save upwards of 20 percent on

         13  a given construction project and be a little more

         14  predictable in terms of what the project will cost

         15  and how long it will take.

         16                 With this, I would like to thank you

         17  for the opportunity to speak to you today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 We are going to ask them all to

         21  testify, and then if you will take questions, so

         22  please stay at the desk.

         23                 MR. SERVEDIO: Thank you. Madam

         24  Chairperson, honorable members of the City Council,

         25  my name is Dominick Servedio, I am vice president
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          2  and a board member of the New York Association of

          3  Consulting Engineers. I also serve on the Board and

          4  the Executive Committee of the New York Building

          5  Congress. I am president and chief executive officer

          6  of STV, a 1,300 person engineering an architectural

          7  firm founded in New York City in 1912. We are one of

          8  the largest employers of engineers and architects in

          9  the City.

         10                 I offer this testimony in strong

         11  support of Intro. 523, which calls for the

         12  institution of quality-based selection procedures

         13  for architectural and engineering service contracts

         14  in New York City.

         15                 In the course of my 30-year career, I

         16  have represented both public agencies and AE firms

         17  in the procurement process. Prior to joining STV, I

         18  was employed by the New York Metropolitan

         19  Transportation Authority where I saw firsthand the

         20  benefit of quality-based selection in improving this

         21  region's vital rail infrastructure.

         22                 Now as a consultant, I witness not

         23  only the successes of quality-based selection, in

         24  municipalities, cities and states throughout the

         25  country, but also the very public failures of
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          2  low-bidding AE services especially here in my city.

          3                 I was with the Metropolitan

          4  Transportation Authority in its early years, back in

          5  the late sixties. Because of years of neglect and

          6  deferred maintenance, the state of our subway and

          7  railroad systems was deplorable. The magnitude of

          8  the consulting work required was huge, not unlike

          9  that confronting the City today. And because of

         10  this, we made a deliberate decision to hire the most

         11  qualified architects and engineers, using the best

         12  method available to us, quality-based selection.

         13                 As the region's transportation

         14  renaissance continues to this day, the success of

         15  this approach is apparent citywide.

         16                 In addition to the Metropolitan

         17  transportation authority, the New York State

         18  Department of Transportation, the Port Authority of

         19  New York and New Jersey have adopted QBS.

         20                 Frank Lombardi, Chief Engineer of the

         21  Port Authority, has written to the Council to

         22  recommend adoption of Intro. 523 and I have

         23  submitted his letter.

         24                 It is my opinion that the current

         25  procurement policy employed by the City of New York
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          2  is costing the taxpayers needless money and has the

          3  potential to negatively impact the quality of life

          4  and the safety of the public.

          5                 Low bid procurement is based on the

          6  assumption that all firms can provide the same

          7  quality of consulting services. This is simply not

          8  the case.

          9                 The competitive bidding of A/E

         10  services promotes a number of undesirable outcomes.

         11  Let's look at that.

         12                 - The selection of architects and

         13  engineers with less experience and those that may

         14  lack a full understanding of the project

         15  requirements.

         16                 - It results in less detailed

         17  designs.

         18                 - The assignment of less expensive,

         19  and less experienced junior staff.

         20                 - It is a disincentive for innovation

         21  and creativity.

         22                 - A low bid procurement limits

         23  quality audits, peer reviews, value engineering

         24  efforts concerning safety, constructibility,

         25  accuracy of design, and economic viability.
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          2                 - Minimal life cycle studies that

          3  affect future O&M and replacement costs going

          4  forward.

          5                 The resulting designs are minimal at

          6  best. And, the supervision and guidance required to

          7  manage this design effort of an inexperienced

          8  architect and engineer is timely and very costly to

          9  the city.

         10                 Contractors' bids on marginal design

         11  packages are a necessity inflated with contingent

         12  costs. And it is during construction that the real

         13  danger of marginal designs emerge. Change orders and

         14  claims relating to design deficiencies, and

         15  conditions not noted on the plans, further increase

         16  project costs and encourage lawsuits.

         17                 When A/E firms perform field

         18  observation during construction, expert resident

         19  engineering services are essential. Resident

         20  engineers inspect construction practices for

         21  workmanship in conformance with the plans and

         22  specifications, and adherence to safety standards.

         23  It is senseless to scrimp on these services through

         24  competitive bidding.

         25                 Quality-based selection is not a new
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          2  idea. It was introduced to counter the risk of low

          3  bid contracting. Advocated in the Brooks Act of

          4  1972, and lauded by the American Bar Association in

          5  its Model Procurement Code, this contracting method

          6  offers tangible benefits to the public.

          7                 The quality-based selection process

          8  acknowledges the important role that professional

          9  A&E firms play in public works projects and

         10  recognizes that the procurement of such services is

         11  unique.

         12                 The quality of design services is the

         13  most critical factor in determining the overall

         14  construction and life cycle costs for our projects.

         15  With design services representing only a small

         16  fraction of the initial construction budget, it is

         17  in the City's best interest to ensure that only the

         18  most qualified firms participate in public projects.

         19                 I would like to give you a little

         20  example. Fruma Narov gave you one, but I want to

         21  give you one that stresses that. If we take a $50

         22  million project and we say that the six percent, and

         23  that $3 million fee, and the most qualified firm is

         24  at $3,300,000, ten percent more, that is $300,000.

         25  Well, you would say that is a savings to the City,
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          2  but if that qualified for the minimal it would do

          3  the most qualified firm, is reduce construction cost

          4  by two percent with a good design, and most likely

          5  reduce change orders in the field by one percent.

          6  That is a savings of a million and a half dollars to

          7  the City. Who wouldn't invest $300,000 to get a

          8  million and a half dollar payback?

          9                 With quality-based selection, A/E

         10  firms are selected on the basis of such criteria as

         11  their credentials, recognized capacity, technical

         12  competence, client recommendations, workload,

         13  financial stability, and client compatibility.

         14                 What this allows is a heightened

         15  level of innovation impossible in low bid

         16  contracting. Selection is generally predicated on

         17  the A/E firm's understanding of the project scope

         18  and complexity. As a rule, scopes of work are

         19  discussed, analyzed, critiqued, refined and in most

         20  instances greatly improved during the QB selection

         21  process, at virtually no cost to the client.

         22                 Quality and safety issues are

         23  scrutinized and valuable lessons learned on previous

         24  projects are shared, all before design even begins.

         25                 At the same time, project teams are
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          2  able to assign their most experienced staff and

          3  commit to an effort required for a quality design.

          4  Construction bids are more on target, work sites are

          5  safer and construction proceeds with less risk and

          6  lower unanticipated costs. Further O&M costs are

          7  reduced. Quality-based selection promotes quality

          8  construction projects that meet the exacting

          9  standards of quality design. New York City deserves

         10  no less.

         11                 New York City is at a crossroads.

         12  Each year it becomes a better and better place to

         13  live and conduct business. Continuing to attract and

         14  retain our valuable residents and businesses is an

         15  ever-growing challenge. We can either exploit this

         16  momentum by making a commitment to rebuild our vital

         17  infrastructure so that it will last well into the

         18  next century, or through misguided frugality, pass

         19  this responsibility onto future generations.

         20                 I welcome the opportunity for further

         21  dialogue on the merits of Intro. 523 and encourage

         22  your favorable consideration.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         25                 And the last person.
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          2                 MR. FOSTER: Good morning, Madam

          3  Chairperson and members of the City Council. My name

          4  is John H. Foster, and I am also here today to

          5  testify in favor of Intro. 523-A.

          6                 I am a past president of the American

          7  Consulting Engineers Council, the national

          8  federation of which the New York Association is a

          9  member. In this role, I have had the opportunity to

         10  experience the use of various system views for

         11  engineering and architectural services, Mr.

         12  Chairman, across the nation and around the world. I

         13  have seen what works and I have seen what does not

         14  work.

         15                 Further, I am former CEO of Malcolm

         16  Pirnie, Inc., A New York-based engineering firm that

         17  has provided engineering services to the City of New

         18  York for more than 50 years.

         19                 Today I am speaking on behalf of both

         20  of these organizations. I am concerned that the

         21  current system has or will contribute to reduced

         22  quality of completed projects in the City.

         23                 Let me tell you why I am convinced

         24  that the proposed QBS system is much better than the

         25  competitive price bidding system now being used by
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          2  City agencies.

          3                 As you have been told so far this

          4  morning, the procurement of engineering and

          5  architectural services is one of the most important

          6  steps in ensuring quality in the constructed

          7  project. A qualifications-based selection process

          8  allows the owner to choose the firm determined to be

          9  the most qualified by an objective criteria at a

         10  fair and reasonable price, whereas selecting design

         11  professional through any other type of competitive

         12  process involving cost takes all judgment out of the

         13  hands of the owner - low bid gets the job.

         14                 If price is even a small factor in

         15  public sector A/E selection, it will quickly become

         16  the only factor because it is the simplest, most

         17  measurable and most defensible aspect of the

         18  decision-making process. The only problem is it is

         19  the wrong way to do it.

         20                 The owner's real challenge is to get

         21  a good return on the investment in design services.

         22  This is best achieved by first selecting a

         23  well-qualified A/E firm and then negotiating

         24  appropriate scope and compensation to permit the A/E

         25  to effectively use his experience and staff to
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          2  produce a well thought-out project. The impact of

          3  the A/E's efforts on innovative design, exploration

          4  of alternatives, life cycle costs, construction

          5  costs estimates and liability exposure to the public

          6  client is critical.

          7                 Now, used successfully since the

          8  Civil War, and I was not around at the time, QBS is

          9  the most widely endorsed method by which public

         10  owners select design professionals. Particularly

         11  because the concerns for public health and safety,

         12  the QBS process is endorsed by our professional

         13  organizations as well as public organizations such

         14  as the American Public Works Association and the

         15  American Water Works Association, the American Bar

         16  Association, Associated General Contractors of

         17  America and on and on and on.

         18                 Because the process is mandated on

         19  federally funded projects, as outlined by the Brooks

         20  Law, PL 92-582, it has been notably successful there

         21  too. About 37 states have adopted this statute, and

         22  for funded state projects. To my knowledge no state

         23  has a statute requiring price bidding of A/E

         24  projects.

         25                 Use of QBS on federal projects has
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          2  been debated by the congress on a number of

          3  occasions, and has been supported by members of both

          4  parties.

          5                 Congress Dingle from Michigan said

          6  several years ago:

          7                 "If you want to deal on price and

          8  engineering you may get cheap engineering, but you

          9  may get a fantastically costly, dangerous,

         10  ineffective and inefficient product."

         11                 Those of you who followed Congressman

         12  Dingle know he really says what he thinks.

         13                 And example where Mr. Dingle's fears

         14  were realized was in the walkway collapse in the

         15  Kansas City Hyatt Regency Hotel back in 1981, killed

         16  111 people and injured some 188 others.

         17                 Shortly after that time a US House of

         18  Representatives Subcommittee report on Structural

         19  Failures in Public Facilities, stated that one of

         20  the six factors of critical importance in causing

         21  the structural failure of the Hyatt Regency Project

         22  was the selection of architects and engineers based

         23  on bid.

         24                 A system that simply seeks the

         25  cheapest design cost is bound to produce lower
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          2  quality projects, not every time but most of the

          3  time.

          4                 A design firm's approach to a project

          5  must change when the fee becomes a major criteria

          6  for selection. Such firms develop a means of cutting

          7  their time on a project by minimizing the level of

          8  service. They have no choice if they want to remain

          9  in business.

         10                 It is clear that such activities are

         11  underway in current City work. In my judgment, said

         12  activities are not in the public interest.

         13                 At a time when the infrastructure of

         14  this great City has such enormous needs for

         15  rebuilding and developing to meet the needs of the

         16  public, A/E procurement should provide for vigorous

         17  and open competition among qualified firms.

         18                 In addition, the price for these

         19  services should be fair and reasonable to all

         20  concerned. I believe that proper implementation of

         21  Intro. 523-A legislation would be a major

         22  improvement. We should maximize the quality, value,

         23  cost effectiveness and usefulness of all of our

         24  projects. This great City deserves an appropriate

         25  QBS system and we ask for your favorable action.
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          2  Thank you for the opportunity to speak on this

          3  subject.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          5  much. I know there are a couple of questions. Let me

          6  just ask that I know the City will be testifying

          7  after you and I am sure they are going to tell us

          8  either that they do quality-based selection or a

          9  form of it, or that this will cost the City a lot of

         10  money. And I was wondering if we could have your

         11  responses to that. If you had personal experiences

         12  with the City, or know of experiences with the City

         13  where there have been these kinds of problems, or

         14  where a firm was chosen based just on the lowest

         15  amount of money, as opposed to experience or

         16  qualification?

         17                 MS. NAROV: There has been some form

         18  of quality based selection in the past that is

         19  slowly deteriorating and disappearing.

         20                 Right now we see some City agencies

         21  that throw the qualification totally out and just

         22  look at the price. In other words, they just

         23  generally qualify the fact that the firm is licensed

         24  and is entitled to do engineering in the City of New

         25  York, but do not address any specific needs on a
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          2  project and just look at price.

          3                 It is our experience, and the fact is

          4  that the state and the federal government are both

          5  procuring services through quality-based selection.

          6  We do not find that the price for our services is

          7  exorbitantly higher when we do work for the state or

          8  for the federal government.

          9                 We find that we have a better

         10  opportunity to define the scope. The client knows

         11  what they are paying for and they have an

         12  opportunity to say no we do not want you to do this

         13  and we want you to do this, and as long as we are

         14  both open-eyed walking into the situation, you know,

         15  there is a basis of agreement, and based on this I

         16  think the fees are actually commensurate. What

         17  happens with competitive bidding is that you have no

         18  idea what scope is really necessary for the project,

         19  so what you are getting is a cookbook scope price,

         20  and with this it is priced with the lowest possible

         21  talent level. But the numbers are not tremendously

         22  bigger in terms of fee, in terms of percentage of

         23  fee, as the total cost of construction.

         24                 So that is why we keep saying we

         25  don't see the numbers running amuck in terms of
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          2  fees. What we want is an opportunity to be qualified

          3  first, to have an opportunity to discuss the scope

          4  with the client, with the professional on the other

          5  side, and then apply what our salaries are, our

          6  overhead rates are, the numbers are not running

          7  crazy.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          9                 MR. FOSTER: May I? I think your

         10  question cuts right to the core of the problem. My

         11  firm designs large wastewater treatment plants, we

         12  have been doing a lot of work for New York City. The

         13  difficulty is that you never really know how much

         14  more this plant is going to cost to operate because

         15  the cost of wastewater and water treatment as you

         16  know is enormous, it goes on for year after year

         17  after year.

         18                 Across the country we have seen

         19  plants improperly designed that simply cost the

         20  client a lot of money, and basically it is people

         21  who are trying to do a cheap job. And I am convinced

         22  that the total cost, when all is said and done, is

         23  much less to everybody concerned when we do it under

         24  a proper QBS system.

         25                 MR. SERVEDIO: Just to add, we don't
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          2  see where the QBS procedures would increase city

          3  costs. If anything, there is a greater burden placed

          4  on the engineer and architects during a QBS process

          5  to fully explain to the City their qualifications,

          6  their understanding of the scope and the approach

          7  that that particular firm would use in solving that

          8  particular project.

          9                 If anything, the City benefits from

         10  that because they take all the approaches that the

         11  several firms have given, they take the good ideas

         12  that these firms have given, and discussed it among

         13  themselves. So, in a sense, as I said in my

         14  testimony, the City ends up with a lot of up-front

         15  free brainstorming ideas during the selection

         16  process. It is more costly for us, but it gives us

         17  an opportunity to present our credentials in the

         18  best manner.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you. I

         20  just want to mention we have been joined by Council

         21  Member Espada, and Council Member Lopez has a

         22  question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Good morning to

         24  you.

         25                 Ms. Narov, in your testimony on page
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          2  two, at the end, the two paragraphs at the end, I

          3  need to ask you this question because I want to make

          4  clear if I understood what you were talking about.

          5                 Creativity in our society is

          6  perceived as something that is expensive and

          7  prohibitive. You are trying to tell me that in the

          8  area of architecture and engineering, creativity is

          9  not that, it is something different, it is something

         10  that will economize money in construction. Did I

         11  understand that correctly?

         12                 MS. NAROV: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then explain

         14  why.

         15                 MS. NAROV: I will explain to you. We

         16  do our work on paper. The final result is very hard

         17  to correct. We want to do as much of the thinking

         18  with a pencil and a piece of paper before we put a

         19  set of drawings out there where facts happen that

         20  are much more difficult to correct.

         21                 So, when we say creativity, we mean

         22  first of all, in terms of technology, engineering,

         23  water engineering, civil engineering, bridge

         24  engineering, there are new advancements all the time

         25  that improve materials and cut costs, whether
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          2  initial costs or long-term costs. We need to explore

          3  those on an ongoing basis. We literally have a big

          4  chunk of our work that is research and development,

          5  just to make sure that when we service our clients

          6  we give them the benefits of everything. What we

          7  offer is we that we have such a small portion of the

          8  entire process that you give us the opportunity to

          9  do it all on paper, so when a contractor goes out

         10  and builds there, he builds the best solution. So

         11  the variations that we do on paper don't cost as

         12  much as the mistakes that any contractor, the

         13  smallest mistake that a contractor can make in the

         14  field is a multiple of how much it will cost to do

         15  the correct work on paper.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have

         17  proof of this?

         18                 Can you show the City Council that

         19  when creativity is put in place, not as a commodity

         20  but as something that is part of reducing cost, do

         21  you have proof? Can you show us how work --

         22                 MS. NAROV: Unfortunately there are no

         23  statistics. And believe me, we have tried in

         24  different manners to obtain these statistics.

         25                 Each of us that has ever done work
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          2  both ways has anecdotal examples of how it works one

          3  way and it doesn't work the other way. Nobody keeps

          4  records that will show us that that is the case. But

          5  I suggest that the change orders that are

          6  experienced in City work, when they are

          7  competitively bid, are somewhat out of proportion

          8  relative to what happens on quality-based selection

          9  processes. And I would welcome an opportunity to

         10  discuss it further with you and to see where we

         11  could do the research that will lead us to this

         12  direction but nobody has compiled the data that will

         13  help us with this.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what you

         15  are saying, I mean to be clear, is that creativity

         16  has to be attached to time, and time is what is more

         17  costly here.

         18                 In other words, in order for you to

         19  produce the best quality design, you need more time,

         20  therefore time is money. Is that what you are

         21  saying?

         22                 MS. NAROV: It is not just time, it is

         23  also talent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It is also

         25  what?
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          2                 MS. NAROV: Talent.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Talent.

          4                 MS. NAROV: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then talent

          6  combined with time, those two things would be the

          7  issue in here?

          8                 MS. NAROV: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Oh, I am sorry is there another

         13  question? I am sorry, Tracy, I didn't see you.

         14                 Council Member Boyland.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         16  ladies and gentlemen, for joining us today.

         17                 I just have a few questions, and

         18  while the testimonies were being presented, some of

         19  the questions that came to mind is the fact that the

         20  Comptroller has already set a list of policies that

         21  when contractors, as we have seen them, in my

         22  district in Brooklyn we do a lot of work with HPD,

         23  we do a lot of work with the School Construction,

         24  but when contractors come forth to present, to

         25  respond to requests for proposals, the Comptroller

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  has already set a list of qualifications that he

          3  looks at, that his office looks at in terms of

          4  making decisions on things.

          5                 What is your opinion of that? And

          6  secondly, what are your feelings on some of the

          7  small organizations? Because I know my short time

          8  here in the Council, we have worked very hard to

          9  make sure that the doors are open to smaller firms,

         10  to smaller companies, to open the door so they can

         11  become aware of the process and also be able to

         12  benefit from some of the fiscal things that are

         13  going on within the City. So, on those two questions

         14  can you respond?

         15                 MR. SERVEDIO: I will take the second

         16  question. As far as small business is concerned, I

         17  think we all -- we are a major firm, but we have an

         18  obligation to small businesses. We need to help

         19  these businesses learn, help them grow, and make

         20  them, have them to be available to the resources

         21  that we have. This is a costly thing. I mean, this

         22  is something that we firms want to do, and when you

         23  have a low bid type of situation, we would have to

         24  preclude doing that, because we would then have to

         25  bid and try to do the short-term price, in which if
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          2  we had the opportunity we could bring these small

          3  firms on to work with us on some major projects.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So you are

          5  offering sort of you be the major CM and the small

          6  organizations to come in under you?

          7                 MR. SERVEDIO: On the larger projects,

          8  and that would make them available to do some of the

          9  smaller projects on their own.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Because

         11  we have spent a lot of money throughout these fiscal

         12  budgets to do things like the Internet system, to do

         13  things that have opened up the door and to put

         14  smaller businesses sort of like in the whole fold of

         15  what is going on in the City in terms of

         16  contracting, and we want to try to continue that but

         17  we also want to see your quality-based service, your

         18  proposals enforced, but we also want to make sure we

         19  do that.

         20                 And to the first question?

         21                 MS. NAROV: Actually, the New York

         22  Association of Consulting Engineers is by no means

         23  only a large engineering group organization. We have

         24  many members who are two and three individual firms.

         25  So, we do represent the interest of a wide range.
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          2                 The first question is, what the

          3  Comptroller has in place is a very general

          4  qualification list, that just in very broad terms

          5  defies the applicability of a certain firm to do

          6  business.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

          8                 MS. NAROV:  What we are suggesting is

          9  when you come to a specific project, there are too

         10  many variables to just use this list blindly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: When you say

         12  a specific project?

         13                 MS. NAROV:  Any given project is not

         14  a simple project. You take any project, any bridge

         15  that is put out there to design, it has specific

         16  problems, it has specific deterioration, it has a

         17  different type structure, it requires a different

         18  type experience. There has to be an opportunity when

         19  we talk about a given project, that we discuss this

         20  project in very great detail. As Dominick said, wait

         21  before you pay us a penny for our services, we are

         22  all talking during the negotiation where our time is

         23  given free, that the scope is defined so when we

         24  start designing the project we are all on the same

         25  page, and we know what the City is getting for its

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  money.

          3                 MR. HAGADORN: If I could just add a

          4  thought on the second question, the one having to do

          5  with smaller firms, perhaps a less experienced firm.

          6  My firm is in the business primarily of wastewater

          7  treatment and water treatment, as John Foster's is,

          8  when a City agency is evaluating my firm for a

          9  project of that type, they are very knowledgeable of

         10  the level of expertise and the level --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right, that

         12  is part of the Comptroller's checklist, the

         13  checklist that the City Contract Committee has is

         14  that there is a list and on the top is also

         15  experience and if we are dealing with contracting on

         16  bond capacity and things of that nature, you know.

         17                 MR. HAGADORN: I am going to try to

         18  give you an example.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Go ahead.

         20                 MR. HAGADORN: So, when my firm is

         21  being evaluated for a wastewater treatment project,

         22  there is a recognition of the qualifications that

         23  are required for that kind of work. If someone were

         24  competing with us that was very expert at much more

         25  sophisticated systems, nuclear reactors, well they
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          2  should not score higher than us because that is an

          3  unnecessary level of ability.

          4                 So, depending on the project,

          5  depending on the type of work, the QBS system, it is

          6  a very important element of it that it make a

          7  recognition of the level of expertise that is

          8  required, and that fashion the work does get

          9  distributed.

         10                 MS. NAROV: Let me try and give you an

         11  example.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, because

         13  we actually do have to kind of cut this short

         14  because we have got a lot of people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I would love

         16  to talk to you further on a later date.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And we have to be

         18  out of here by 1:00.

         19                 MS. NAROV: All right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         21  much. We are going to bring the City up next. I

         22  guess PPB and MOC. And we were at least momentarily

         23  joined by Council Member Perkins.

         24                 As I pointed out before we have got

         25  several hearings going at the same time and we have
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          2  got several people bouncing back and forth.

          3                 Okay, gentlemen, do we have your

          4  testimony? When you are ready, if you would raise

          5  your right hand.

          6                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. STOLLER: Yes.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: State your names

         11  and positions and go for it. Although, I know we

         12  have drug this out, but I will also ask if you can

         13  -- we will have your written testimony, if you can

         14  somewhat summarize it, it would be helpful.

         15                 MR. STOLLER: With all due respect,

         16  Council Member, the engineers were up here for about

         17  an hour. We are the only people from the

         18  Administration, we would like to present our

         19  testimony in full.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         21                 MR. STOLLER: Good morning, Madam

         22  Chair, and members of the Committee on Contracts. I

         23  am Michael Stoller, Executive Director of the

         24  Procurement Policy Board, and I appreciate the

         25  opportunity to appear before you today on behalf of
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          2  the majority of the PPB comprising the Mayoral

          3  appointees.

          4                 The Procurement Policy Board opposes

          5  Intro. 523-A. This proposed legislation purports to

          6  require quality-based selection for architectural

          7  and engineering services by city agencies. This

          8  implies that the City does not currently select such

          9  services based on quality, and is an insult to the

         10  firms, including many members of the New York

         11  Association of Consulting Engineers who apply for

         12  and receive contracts for City A and E work.

         13                 The bill also implies that of the

         14  many services the City procures, whether child care,

         15  legal or elder care or medical, the only ones deemed

         16  worthy to be selected in the basis of so-called

         17  quality are those supplied by architects and

         18  engineers.

         19                 As the Committee well knows, these

         20  implications are false. The City uses quality as a

         21  standard in all its selections and quality is a

         22  crucial component of any procurement for services.

         23                 What this legislation would do is

         24  require the

         25  City to create a short list from the pool of
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          2  applicants based solely on quality, pick the number

          3  one firm and open its, and only its, price proposal,

          4  then negotiate rice with just that one firm. If

          5  agreement is not reached with that firm, then the

          6  City would go to the second-ranked firm and begin

          7  the price negotiation process again. If agreement is

          8  not reached with that firm, then the City would

          9  continue down the list until it reaches a firm with

         10  which price negotiations end to both parties'

         11  satisfaction.

         12                 A more commonsense approach would be

         13  to do what the City does now, and that is, to use

         14  quality as its first and foremost selection

         15  criterion, and then negotiate price simultaneously

         16  with a few top ranked firms.

         17                 The City's practice does not diminish

         18  the appropriate emphasis on quality. City agencies

         19  often receive proposals for many of the large

         20  established architectural and engineering firms.

         21  Should these firms end up in the top three positions

         22  on the quality list, separated by few points, it

         23  stands to reason that any of the three could provide

         24  top quality service, making price a more important

         25  factor at that juncture in the selection process.
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          2                 Let me diverge from my written

          3  testimony for a second. An earlier witness testified

          4  about a hypothetical $300,000 difference in price.

          5  Well, let's say you had a couple of really class

          6  firms, including some of the ones who were up here

          7  at the table, and they were apart by a million

          8  dollars in price, and one point in quality,

          9  shouldn't we be considering whether one point in

         10  quality is worth a million taxpayer dollars? That is

         11  what we are talking about here.

         12                 In fact, the Mayor's Office of

         13  Contracts allows for a higher price firm to get the

         14  job, as long as a selection decision is properly

         15  documented and justified.

         16                 Intro. 523-A does not help the City

         17  or the public we serve, it does not ensure greater

         18  quality. What it does is protect one industry from

         19  the appropriate consideration of price as a factor

         20  in public procurement. We urge the Council to reject

         21  this measure.

         22                 Thank you for your attention.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: Good morning. My name is

         24  Claude Millman. I am the Director of the Mayor's

         25  Office of Contracts and the City Chief Procurement
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          2  Officer. I appreciate the opportunity to appear

          3  before you today concerning Intro. 523-A, a bill to

          4  prohibit City agencies from considering market

          5  prices in selecting architectural and engineering

          6  contractors. The Administration opposes the bill.

          7                 Although some of the words the

          8  procurement professionals use to describe what they

          9  do sounds technical, like competitive sealed bids,

         10  RFPs and negotiated acquisitions, government

         11  procurement is shopping, plain and simple.

         12                 Government procurement professionals

         13  shop the way you do. We consider quality and price

         14  and make our best judgment about which good or

         15  service to buy. There are fewer differences between

         16  how government procurement professionals shop and

         17  how you may shop. We don't use our own money. Our

         18  experience is most like that of a person given a

         19  twenty dollar bill by a friend and asked to pick

         20  something up for them at the store.

         21                 When you have that kind of fiduciary

         22  obligation, you have to take the process more

         23  seriously. While you might ordinarily just pick up

         24  the brand name product that you are familiar with if

         25  you were using your own money, when you are shopping
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          2  for someone else, you tend to comparison shop more

          3  carefully.

          4                 The types of shopping generally fall

          5  into two categories. In the first you know precisely

          6  what type of product you need and you will buy it

          7  from the manufacturer who is asking for the lowest

          8  price. When you buy milk, for example, price should

          9  generally dictate your decision.

         10                 Much of our shopping, however, is

         11  more complex. Shoppers look for best value, a

         12  concept that requires some balance between quality

         13  and price.

         14                 If you are in the market for an air

         15  conditioner, for example, you might first read

         16  consumer reports to get some advice about which are

         17  the best products. Once at the store you select a

         18  product after balancing considerations of quality

         19  and price. Even if you walk in the store convinced

         20  that you want a first class air conditioner, you

         21  don't ignore the prices of the other products. While

         22  the lower prices of the other products might not

         23  sway you from your decision to get the top ranked

         24  machine at the end of the day, they inform your

         25  decision.
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          2                 Indeed you may even struggle with the

          3  question of whether to spend the extra hundred

          4  dollars for the best machine, save that money or

          5  spend it on your vacation. This is the kind of

          6  judgment call that you make every day about your

          7  money, the government procurement professionals make

          8  those judgements about the taxpayers' money.

          9                 Price is no object is not a rule that

         10  New Yorkers use when they shop with their own money,

         11  and it is not and should not be a rule that

         12  government procurement professionals have to follow

         13  when they spend taxpayer dollars. Yet that is what

         14  Intro. 523-A would require. The bill would strip

         15  City decision-makers of the right to consider

         16  valuable information, the prices offered by

         17  competitors, when they spend hundreds of millions of

         18  taxpayer dollars.

         19                 The bill would deny the Executive

         20  Branch the authority to exercise its best judgment

         21  in engaging architectural and engineering services.

         22                 Make no mistake about it, you are

         23  considering today a proposal that would allow a

         24  group of vendors to make tens of millions of dollars

         25  at taxpayer expense without any benefit to the
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          2  public. Accordingly, the Administration opposes the

          3  bill.

          4                 Each year the City procures

          5  approximately $7 billion in goods, services and

          6  construction. As noted before, some purchases focus

          7  on price, usually through the competitive sealed bid

          8  process, while others involve balancing quality and

          9  price usually through the competitive sealed

         10  proposal process.

         11                 The competitive sealed bid process is

         12  generally used to procure goods or construction

         13  through an award to the lowest responsible bidder

         14  and focuses almost exclusively on price.

         15                 The competitive sealed proposal

         16  process is generally used to procure services

         17  through an award to the responsible proposer whose

         18  proposal is the most advantageous for the City in

         19  light of the proposed price and a technical score

         20  generally reflecting experience, capacity and

         21  approach.

         22                 While both quality and price play a

         23  role in such procurements, quality is typically the

         24  dominant factor. The Procurement Policy Board rules

         25  describe the competitive field proposal process as
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          2  the preferred method for the procurement of

          3  non-commodity data processing equipment, products

          4  and services, and for architectural engineering,

          5  human, social, cultural or educational legal

          6  accounting, financial and other professional

          7  services.

          8                 Not surprisingly, that method is used

          9  for a substantial portion of the City's purchases.

         10                 For example, this and comparable

         11  methods are used to procure $1 billion in foster

         12  care services, $1 billion in home care services,

         13  $500 million in employment training and placement

         14  services and $400 million in architectural and

         15  engineering services each year.

         16                 In each of these areas and countless

         17  others, such as legal and medical services, where

         18  discretionary judgment must be exercised in

         19  selecting a vendor, the City officials charged with

         20  selecting a vendor collect information regarding the

         21  vendor's price and the likelihood the particular

         22  vendor will achieve the City's goals and balance

         23  those factors in an effort to make the best decision

         24  regarding how to spend public funds.

         25                 The City never uses the competitive
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          2  sealed bid process in selecting an architect or an

          3  engineer, despite the statement of several witnesses

          4  before.

          5                 Generally the competitive sealed

          6  proposal process is used to select a vendor. Under

          7  the City Charter the contract must be awarded under

          8  that method to the responsible offer award whose

          9  proposal is determined to be the most advantageous

         10  to the City taking into consideration the price and

         11  other factors or criteria as are set forth in the

         12  request for proposal, i.e., experience capacity and

         13  approach.

         14                 In short, the City officials

         15  selecting architects and engineers are currently

         16  under a legal mandate to make a selection that is

         17  most advantageous to the City.

         18                 This mandate is met by following a

         19  process that places great weight on quality but

         20  respects the value of taxpayer dollars involved.

         21                 The City's construction agencies

         22  generally use prequalified lists of vendors to

         23  procure architectural and engineering services. To

         24  be included on a prequalified list, firms must

         25  submit a questionnaire providing information about
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          2  their experience, credentials, staffing and other

          3  qualifications to the City agency with which they

          4  wish to contract.

          5                 After agency technical personnel

          6  review the submission, the decision is made

          7  regarding whether to include the firm on the list.

          8  Firms on the list may be invited to compete on a

          9  particular procurement. Often, however, agencies

         10  further limit the potential price competition by

         11  developing for a particular procurement a best

         12  qualified list, consisting of firms whose experience

         13  and expertise makes them particularly well qualified

         14  to undertake a specific project.

         15                 To initiate a procurement, the agency

         16  issues a request for proposals which outlines the

         17  scope of services required and the evaluation

         18  criteria to be used in selecting a contractor.

         19  Typically, only quality is scored. The elements of

         20  quality, experience, capacity and approach, are

         21  appropriately weighted to produce a total potential

         22  technical score.

         23                 On average, the construction agencies

         24  receive nine proposals for architectural and

         25  engineering procurement. An Evaluation Committee
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          2  usually made up of at least three city architects or

          3  engineers reviews the proposals and gives each a

          4  technical score.

          5                 Typically the Committee will then

          6  short list the firms with the highest technical

          7  scores, and open the prices of the firms on the

          8  short list. On average, four price proposals are

          9  open per procurement.

         10                 The committee then makes a

         11  recommendation regarding which proposal is the most

         12  advantageous to the City. While price is considered

         13  in assessing which of the top firms to select, it is

         14  not the only factor, and even at this stage not the

         15  primary factor. The sole issue before the Committee

         16  is which proposal is the most advantageous to the

         17  City. In explaining its judgment the Committee may

         18  conclude the lowest priced firm will meet the City's

         19  needs in a particular case.

         20                 Alternatively, the Committee may

         21  mathematically balance price and quality by

         22  selecting the firm offering the lowest price for

         23  technical point of score.

         24                 Finally, the Committee may choose a

         25  firm demanding a higher price and price per
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          2  technical point of score on the ground that the

          3  expenditure of additional funds will be in the

          4  City's best interest, an assessment that may be

          5  based on any ground, including that the difference

          6  in consulting fees will be recouped through reduced

          7  construction, maintenance or operating costs,

          8  through reduced costs that could result from delays,

          9  or through increased revenues, or that the higher

         10  price is outweighed by a need to complete the

         11  project quickly or address aesthetic, historical,

         12  cultural or environmental concerns.

         13                 The evaluation committee's

         14  recommendation is subject to several levels of

         15  oversight. First, most construction agencies use an

         16  architectural or engineering consultant selection

         17  committee made up of high level agency personnel to

         18  review the evaluation committee recommendations.

         19                 Second, the Agency Chief Contracting

         20  Officer, in some cases an engineer, must be

         21  satisfied that the proposed contractor can fulfill

         22  the requirements of the procurement and has the

         23  requisite integrity to justify the award of taxpayer

         24  dollars.

         25                 Third, proposed awards in excess of
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          2  $100,000 are subject to the public hearing

          3  requirement.

          4                 Fourth, the Mayor's Office of

          5  Contracts in most cases reviews the agency's

          6  recommendations for award and signs the City

          7  Charter-mandated Certificate of Procedural

          8  Requisites.

          9                 Recommendations for Award, which

         10  describe the process used to select the vendor and

         11  the grounds underlying the selection, are maintained

         12  both by the Comptroller an in agency contract files

         13  and are publicly available after contract

         14  registration.

         15                 Under limited circumstances, City

         16  construction agencies use somewhat different methods

         17  to select architects and engineers. These methods

         18  include multiple award procurement, non-competitive

         19  negotiated acquisitions, solicitation requirements,

         20  construction-management/build and design/build

         21  contracts, and federal method procurements. I will

         22  describe each in turn.

         23                 An agency may award several contracts

         24  using a single procurement. This approach is often

         25  used to simplify and accelerate the procurement
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          2  process.

          3                 To select architects and engineers

          4  through multiple awards, the agency generally

          5  follows the process that I outlined before but

          6  determines that two, three or more proposals are the

          7  most advantageous to the City. Multiple award

          8  procurements have played an important role in the

          9  City's efforts to repair schools and address

         10  environmental hazards and currently result in 25

         11  percent of competitive awards.

         12                 Most negotiated acquisition

         13  procurements of architectural and engineering

         14  services are highly competitive. Some types of

         15  negotiated acquisitions, however, involve

         16  negotiations with a single vendor. This procurement

         17  approach is used to address certain time sensitive

         18  needs, such as compliance with a court order, or to

         19  complete a second or a third phase of a multi-phase

         20  project.

         21                 The Department of Environmental

         22  Protection, for example, uses this method to

         23  complete many of its major projects based on an

         24  assessment that a change in contractor midway

         25  through a project will delay the work and undermine
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          2  project accountability.

          3                 The City uses requirements contracts

          4  with architects and engineers to avoid the necessity

          5  of waiting for a procurement before addressing the

          6  City construction need.

          7                 Moreover, agencies sometimes buy

          8  construction and architectural engineering services

          9  simultaneously by procuring construction management

         10  build or design/build contracts.

         11                 Because these contracts involve mixed

         12  services, price may have greater significance in

         13  these procurements than it does in ordinary

         14  consulting procurements.

         15                 Finally, when the City receives

         16  federal funds for a construction project, the

         17  federal government generally requires that

         18  architects and engineers be selected using the

         19  Brooks Architect-Engineers Act, or Brooks Law, the

         20  federal model for Intro. 523-A.

         21                 In a federal method procurement, the

         22  agency scores the proposals in much the same way as

         23  I described earlier in the regular competitive

         24  sealed proposal process, opens the price proposal of

         25  the top-ranked firm, and negotiates the contract
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          2  with that firm.

          3                 While the City may negotiate with the

          4  second ranked firm, if the first demands an unfair

          5  or unreasonable price, in practice the top-ranked

          6  firm generally receives the award.

          7                 The Administration believes that

          8  federal method procurements result in higher prices

          9  for these services. However, the price differential

         10  is limited somewhat by the fact that the City's

         11  negotiators have access to real market prices from

         12  their competitive procurements that are the

         13  overwhelming majority at present.

         14                 The current system used by the

         15  construction agencies for selecting architects and

         16  engineers appropriately balances quality and price.

         17  There is no evidence that the procurement process

         18  used has resulted in deficient project designs or

         19  engineering services. Indeed the proponents of the

         20  bill have admitted as much. To the contrary, no

         21  construction agency chief contracting officer could

         22  recall defaulting an architectural or engineering

         23  contractor.

         24                 Moreover, the Department of Design

         25  and Construction has received numerous awards and
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          2  honors for its outstanding performance.

          3                 While some architectural and

          4  engineering firms critical of the City's procurement

          5  approach claim that it discourages firms from

          6  seeking City business, this claim is unsupported and

          7  belied by the facts. The City does business with the

          8  top architectural and engineering firms. Over the

          9  past two and a half years, the City has contracted

         10  with approximately half of the top 50 firms in the

         11  New York City metropolitan area identified in the

         12  July 1999, E and R source book.

         13                 Moreover, approximately 80 percent of

         14  the architectural and engineering firms that

         15  received federal method awards over the past two and

         16  a half years also received one or more awards

         17  through the City's competitive procurement process

         18  through the same period.

         19                 Accordingly, there is no reason to

         20  believe that the system results in a different type

         21  of firm working for the City.

         22                 The data directly contradict the

         23  assertion that price is the primary factor in the

         24  City's selection process. My office collected and

         25  analyzed data on architectural and engineering
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          2  procurement totalling almost $1 billion to assess

          3  how our current process is working. The copy of our

          4  report is attached to our testimony.

          5                 Sixty-nine percent of the relevant

          6  contracts approved by the Mayor's Office of

          7  Contracts from January 1997 through July 1999 were

          8  awarded to the proposer with the highest technical

          9  score, 69 percent. Eighty-six percent were awarded

         10  the first or second rank proposer. Ninety-eight

         11  percent of the awards were to the first, second or

         12  third rank proposer.

         13                 Moreover, these numbers would be

         14  substantially higher if non-competitive and federal

         15  method procurements were included in the analysis.

         16                 Significantly, in cases where the top

         17  rank proposer was not selected, the City sacrificed

         18  on average only six percent in technical quality

         19  score to achieve an average cost savings of 31

         20  percent.

         21                 While not sacrificing quality,

         22  selections of other than top rank firms have saved

         23  the City more than $30 million per year.

         24                 Where appropriate the City has

         25  elected to spend more money to obtain extraordinary
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          2  talent. For example, last year DDC engaged Robert

          3  A.M. Stern Architects to design a visitor center at

          4  Wave Hill in the Bronx. Stern is Dean of the Yale

          5  School of Architecture and one of the world's

          6  leading architects. Stern scored 98.67 out of 100

          7  points, beating his closest competitor by 18 points.

          8  His fee, however, was more than twice that of the

          9  lowest price opened, 17 percent of the total

         10  construction cost in contrast to the typical 10

         11  percent, and in excess of the agency's original cost

         12  estimate.

         13                 Stern's proposal was nevertheless

         14  selected as the most advantageous to the City. The

         15  agency concluded that the benefit of using Stern

         16  would far outweigh the additional dollars spent. The

         17  Agency cited the firm's first rate international

         18  reputation, the landmark status of the site, and the

         19  firm's well-known commitment to finding imaginative

         20  design solutions which do not threaten the aesthetic

         21  and cultural values of the structures around it.

         22                 Moreover, there was evidence that Mr.

         23  Stern's reputation for excellence would greatly

         24  enhance Wave Hill's efforts as it raised private

         25  funding for the interior design, exhibits and
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          2  furnishing of the center.

          3                 Similarly, DDC had agreed to pay a

          4  design fee that exceeded the lowest price opened by

          5  almost $500,000, in order to secure the services of

          6  Richard Dattner Architects, P.C., to design an

          7  emergency intake center for abused and neglected

          8  children in the Bellevue S Building in Manhattan.

          9                 Dattner has received more than 70

         10  design awards and citations, including awards from

         11  the Municipal Arts Society, New York City Art

         12  Commission and American Institute of Architects.

         13                 Madam Chair should be familiar with

         14  Dattner's artistic excellence, as Dattner was the

         15  architect that designed the award winning structure

         16  that houses Public School 234 on Greenwich and

         17  Chambers Streets in the chair's district.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And I helped

         19  select him.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Dattner's technical

         21  score for the Bellevue R and S project exceeded that

         22  of the lowest price by more than ten points.

         23  Dattner's top-ranked Bellevue proposal was selected

         24  as the most advantageous to the City,

         25  notwithstanding its higher price.
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          2                 EDC explained that the price

          3  differential was relatively small in light of the

          4  total estimated project cost of $20 million, and

          5  that the higher quality design would have a very

          6  major impact on the final outcome of the

          7  renovations, and that the expense was needed to

          8  produce a facility that would serve a fragile

          9  population and become a simple of child welfare

         10  reform.

         11                 On the other hand, the City has saved

         12  millions of dollars by selecting the second and

         13  third rank firms in appropriate situations.

         14                 The Department of Transportation, for

         15  example, saved the City $527,000 by selecting Munoz

         16  Engineering, P.C., a certified minority business

         17  enterprise, to perform resident engineering

         18  inspection services on bridges at Kings Highway and

         19  Avenue P in Brooklyn.

         20                 Although officially considered the

         21  second rank proposer, Munoz' technical score was

         22  less than a percentage point lower than that of STV,

         23  Inc., the top ranked proposer. STV's proposed fee,

         24  however, was 44 percent higher than that proposed by

         25  Munoz.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Munoz, collaborating with two M/WBE

          3  sub-consultants, received a satisfactory performance

          4  evaluation from DOT for its work on that project.

          5                 Similarly, DOT saved the City

          6  $377,000 by selecting Amman and Whitney for roadway

          7  design and construction support services in

          8  Manhattan and the Bronx. Amman's technical score was

          9  less than two percentage points lower than that of

         10  the top ranked proposer. The top ranked proposer,

         11  however, demanded a fee 21 percent higher than that

         12  proposed by Amman. Amman received a satisfactory

         13  performance evaluation from DOT for that job.

         14                 Of course, the City is sometimes

         15  faced with the pleasant circumstance of receiving

         16  the best quality proposal from the lowest price

         17  proposer.

         18                 For example, when DDC sought to

         19  restore and adapt Louis Armstrong's Queens residents

         20  into a museum, it sought a designer experienced in

         21  museum planning, exhibit lighting, security and

         22  historic preservation and conservation.

         23                 Buttrick, White and Burtris, an award

         24  winning firm in its own right and defendant of the

         25  legendary architecture firm McKim Mead and White,
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          2  was the top ranked and lowest price firm in the

          3  competition. The price competition, however, was

          4  beneficial. Buttrick's price proposal was ten

          5  percent lower than DDC's original cost estimate and

          6  43 percent lower than that of the second ranked

          7  firm.

          8                 Notwithstanding the obvious benefits

          9  of market competition, Intro. 523-A would prohibit

         10  agencies from considering a competing firm's price

         11  when selecting architectural and engineering

         12  contractors.

         13                 Specifically the bill would require

         14  agencies to collect annual submissions from

         15  prospective contractors describing their

         16  qualifications and performance data.

         17                 For each proposed project the agency

         18  would be required to obtain technical proposals from

         19  at least three firms, evaluate the proposals and

         20  rank them in order of technical merit.

         21                 The agency would then be required to

         22  negotiate a contract with the top ranked firm at a

         23  fair and reasonable price based on historical

         24  pricing data for comparable work updated yearly.

         25                 If the agency were unable to do so,
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          2  it would be required to negotiate the second ranked

          3  firm and so on.

          4                 The Administration opposes Intro.

          5  523-A for the following reasons:

          6                 1) The current system works. The

          7  current system strikes an appropriate balance

          8  between quality and price. The City's general

          9  practice of prequalifying vendor is based on

         10  quality, opening a limited number of price proposals

         11  from top ranked firms, and generally favoring

         12  quality over price assures taxpayers that the City

         13  obtains the best architectural and engineering

         14  contractors.

         15                 At the same time the City's

         16  flexibility to select a second or third ranked firm

         17  based on price in an appropriate case protects the

         18  public fisc.

         19                 The mere possibility that a top

         20  ranked firm could lose a contract to a second or

         21  third ranked firm based on price considerations

         22  keeps all prices down to market levels.

         23                 This system of free and open

         24  competition saves the City tens of millions of

         25  dollars a year.
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          2                 2) The proposed legislation is based

          3  on a false premise. The stated premise of the

          4  legislation is to reverse an alleged City policy of

          5  treating price as the prime factor in selecting

          6  architects and engineers. It is also claimed that

          7  jurisdictions around the country have passed similar

          8  legislation.

          9                 In fact, such legislation has

         10  generally been introduced to reverse price based

         11  selection policies. For example, the State of New

         12  York passed legislation similar to Intro. 523-A,

         13  because state agencies were accepting the lowest bid

         14  in nearly every case and using competitive bidding,

         15  i.e. A low bid process, to select professional

         16  consultants.

         17                 Similarly, the federal Brooks Law was

         18  passed to overturn a general accounting office

         19  proposal to compel agencies to follow a competitive

         20  pricing procedure, presumably low bid when selecting

         21  engineers and architects.

         22                 The City, on the other hand, has not

         23  used a low bid process to select architects and

         24  engineers. We have developed a process that treats

         25  quality as the most important factor in more than
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          2  two thirds of all procurements, ignores the prices

          3  proposed by firms with technical rankings in the

          4  bottom 55 percent, and is always guided by what is

          5  most advantageous to the City.

          6                 Price is not the prime factor in the

          7  City's selection system. Accordingly, the stated

          8  basis for the legislation is not grounded in fact.

          9                 3) The proposed legislation would

         10  eliminate price competition. Intro. 523-A would

         11  preclude price competition in the misguided belief

         12  that City agencies charged with procuring

         13  architectural and engineering services cannot

         14  rationally balance quality and price in selecting

         15  contractors.

         16                 The legislation would quickly deprive

         17  the City of life market information regarding price

         18  and compromise each agency's ability to judge

         19  whether the City is truly paying a fair and

         20  reasonable price.

         21                 The cost to the City of architectural

         22  and engineering services would accordingly rise over

         23  time.

         24                 Moreover, the decrease in price

         25  competition would hamper the City's ability to
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          2  negotiate favorable pricing terms that can impact

          3  quality, such as performance-based incentives and

          4  disincentives.

          5                 4) The proposed legislation

          6  irrationally elevates construction-related services

          7  over all other goods and services.

          8                 The City purchases many critical

          9  goods and services. For a substantial portion of its

         10  services, a concern for quality must dominate the

         11  City's selection process. Intro. 523-A, however,

         12  would single out the procurement of architectural

         13  and engineering services for special treatment in a

         14  field that includes foster care, home care, senior

         15  services, domestic violence prevention, employment

         16  training and placement services, legal services for

         17  the indigent, health care for city employees and

         18  inmates and youth services. The passage of such

         19  legislation would send a very negative message

         20  regarding the City priorities.

         21                 5) The proposed legislation does not

         22  address close calls.

         23                 Over the past two and a half years,

         24  in 44 percent of the City's federal method

         25  procurements, at least one member of the evaluation

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  committee considered a firm other than the top

          3  ranked firm the best from a technical point of view,

          4  and in 33 percent the difference between the top

          5  ranked firm and the second ranked firm, three

          6  percentage points or less.

          7                 In one procurement the difference in

          8  score was so close that the top ranked firm failed

          9  to obtain top rankings from two of the three

         10  evaluators.

         11                 Nevertheless, Intro. 523-A would

         12  compel City agencies to ignore the prices offered by

         13  the second ranked firm, even in cases where the

         14  scores of the top two firms were close enough to be

         15  viewed as a tie. The bill would compel irrational

         16  and arbitrary results.

         17                 6) The proposed legislation will

         18  create a corruption hazard.  Competition deters

         19  corruption. While agencies have considerable

         20  discretion at selecting architects and engineers,

         21  they must explain their decisions in public

         22  documents. A corrupt selection is difficult to

         23  explain when the prices of competitors are open and

         24  disclosed.

         25                 Intro. 523-A would substitute the
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          2  hard facts that we now have, the prices offered by

          3  competitors, with a murky concept, historical

          4  pricing data for comparable work. In a world where

          5  engineers and architects sometimes revolve through

          6  government service and return to private industry,

          7  it would be an error to eliminate the check that

          8  such hard facts add to the procurement process.

          9                 7) The proposed legislation may

         10  eliminate important procurement techniques.

         11                 The proposed legislation does not

         12  address various procurement techniques now available

         13  to better serve the public, including multiple award

         14  procurements, negotiated acquisitions, requirements

         15  contracts, construction management/build and

         16  design/build contracts, sole source pass through

         17  contracts with cultural institutions, information

         18  technology contracts, procurements based on a random

         19  selection of prequalified vendors willing to accept

         20  the Office of Management and Budget fee curve.

         21                 If courts erroneously concluded that

         22  Intro. 523-A applies to or prohibits such

         23  procurement approaches, the City's ability to repair

         24  schools, remediate environmental hazards, complete

         25  large multi-phase public work projects and address
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          2  day-to-day construction needs could be hampered.

          3                 8) The proposed legislation could not

          4  become effective without ratification through a

          5  referendum. Intro. 523-A would restrict the

          6  authority of the executive branch to select

          7  architectural and engineering contractors based in

          8  whole or in part on a competitor's price.

          9                 Moreover, it would restrict the

         10  authority of the Mayor and the Comptroller to

         11  establish procurement policy through the Procurement

         12  Policy Board. Accordingly, pursuant to municipal

         13  home rule law of the State of New York, Intro. 523-A

         14  could not become effective without ratification by

         15  the electorate at a referendum.

         16                 9) The proposed legislation is vague.

         17  The bill contains many vague terms that might

         18  embroil the City in litigation and weaken the City's

         19  capital program. It is unclear, for example, what,

         20  if any, obligations section 6-124(b) of the bill

         21  imposes. A court could erroneously conclude that the

         22  provision limits the City's ability to establish

         23  centralized bidders lists. The terms"historical

         24  pricing data" and "comparable work" in section

         25  6-124(c) are also vague.
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          2                 Intro. 523-A would cost the City tens

          3  of millions of dollars per year without improving

          4  the quality of government construction. The bill

          5  would require City procurement professionals to shop

          6  for New Yorkers with less prudence than New Yorkers

          7  would use when shopping for themselves or their

          8  friends. The Committee should reject this bill.

          9                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         10  testify.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         12                 I just have one question. I

         13  understand what you are saying, in effect that you

         14  already do this, so if it ain't broke, don't fix it.

         15  On the other hand, and certainly you have pointed

         16  out a number of high profile cases, what clearly you

         17  essentially did with this bill, it would have the

         18  kind of flexibility this bill would allow, and yet,

         19  not only do we have all of these firms who are here

         20  testifying today, and you must admit this is one of

         21  the best attended hearings we have had, also the

         22  fact that I have talked to numerous City agencies

         23  who basically are in favor of this and say that they

         24  really need this because they feel constrained to

         25  always take the lowest bidder. How do you respond to
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          2  that?

          3                 MR. STOLLER: I think, Madam Chair,

          4  respectfully, you said that what the City does is

          5  the same, uses the same flexibility this bill would

          6  allow. This bill is a non-flexible bill. This is an

          7  inflexible bill, it is a rigid bill.

          8                 What the City does is use quality as

          9  the concept of the bill warrants, but the bill does

         10  not allow us to include price in any rational sense,

         11  and that is a crucial difference here.

         12                 And also, there is a lot of people

         13  here, but I am not sure that is a reason to vote for

         14  or against it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because I mean all

         16  of these groups do work with the city, and yet --

         17                 MR. STOLLER: With all due respect to

         18  them, we would do the same.  It is dollars and cents

         19  to them, I would come too.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, I agree. The

         21  engineers and architects in private practice that

         22  are in this room are basically here for a ten

         23  percent pay raise, which is basically what this bill

         24  would provide for them, with no advantage to the

         25  City. I would come if you told me there was going to
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          2  be a hearing on a ten percent pay raise for me.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, Council

          4  Member Moskowitz has a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes, Eva

          6  Moskowitz. I am new to this process, but I wanted to

          7  thank Mr. Millman and Mr. Stoller for their

          8  testimony.

          9                 I wanted to make two comments and

         10  then a question. I was a little troubled by the

         11  language, Mr. Stoller, that you used in terms of the

         12  proposed legislation being an insult. I think we are

         13  all here under genuine auspices to look at how we

         14  can improve the system, but I certainly appreciate

         15  the well argued and well documented testimony that

         16  you are both offering.

         17                 I wanted to work with your shopping

         18  metaphor because I found it very compelling and

         19  simplifies the process.

         20                 When I shop, though, I usually have

         21  an opportunity to discuss with a vendor the details

         22  of the proposal and one of the points that the

         23  people in favor of Intro. 523 mentioned was they

         24  didn't have such an opportunity, when one contracts

         25  with someone to renovate one's apartment, for
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          2  example, you don't simply work with the hard copy,

          3  you interview each of the contractors and you have a

          4  real opportunity to find out what they mean when

          5  they say they are going to do such and such. And I

          6  was wondering if either of you could comment about

          7  whether such an opportunity would lead to

          8  improvements, because one of the comments you made

          9  is what we have works, and I would say that what we

         10  are here to do is look at how we can improve

         11  whatever we have.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, there is general

         14  such an opportunity, though I have to say I have not

         15  done a study on that particular point, but let me

         16  describe the process in this way.

         17                 The opportunity can come about in

         18  several ways. First of all, we encourage agencies to

         19  use oral interviews as part of the process, and the

         20  rules do not prohibit that in any way. So, in other

         21  words, you would submit a written proposal, and then

         22  some or all of the proposers could at the option of

         23  the agency be interviewed.

         24                 Now, the agency might decide that

         25  there are nine proposals, as there are on average,
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          2  that they only want to interview the top three. They

          3  could make that decision just like they are only

          4  opening the top three or four prices.

          5                 In addition, the proposer is always

          6  free to make a clarification, so they can send in,

          7  at certain points in the process they could send in

          8  a clarification and they could request if they

          9  wanted an opportunity to make a statement orally,

         10  they could say we think we can make our case better

         11  orally and then the agency could consider that.

         12                 In addition, there is something

         13  called a best and final offer process. In fact, it

         14  happened that process was used in the example that I

         15  used involving Robert A.M. Stern. They opened up the

         16  top three price proposals in that procurement and

         17  then the next step is to have something called

         18  discussion. The rules say you can have discussions

         19  with one or more vendors provided that you treat the

         20  vendors fairly. So, in other words, you could pick

         21  the top three or top four based on a break in the

         22  score, but you couldn't just have discussions with

         23  one in four, unless you had some rational basis for

         24  doing so.

         25                 And so you have those discussions and
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          2  usually discussions would be where you would discuss

          3  things like trying to understand their proposal

          4  better, trying to have the vendor understand what

          5  you are trying to do better, also trying to

          6  understand the price better, and after discussions

          7  you can have what is called a best and final offer,

          8  where you say, okay, now we have had discussions,

          9  hopefully now we understand things better, give us,

         10  either revise your proposal or your price and hand

         11  that in and we will look at that and we will rescore

         12  based on that. And that happened in the Robert A.M.

         13  Stern example and the price actually of that

         14  architect decreased, probably, my suspicion is,

         15  motivated on the fact that at that point the agency

         16  knew the other prices and they were trying to get

         17  the top one down. That wouldn't happen if the bill

         18  were to be passed, because you wouldn't know the

         19  other price.

         20                 It would certainly be worthwhile,

         21  though I think difficult to go through and do a

         22  study of how often do we do oral interviews in

         23  architectural and engineering procurements. I don't

         24  know the answer to that. My guess would be fairly

         25  frequently, just from my -- I look at most of the
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          2  procurements coming through the office, though my

          3  feel is that it is frequent, but I actually don't

          4  know because we haven't done a study sort of like

          5  the one we did sort of like the one we did to figure

          6  out how frequently we pick one, two and three. On

          7  that study the numbers were higher than I would have

          8  expected.

          9                 If I can add, since you are new to

         10  the Committee, one of the things that we always urge

         11  Committee members to do is join us at a class of the

         12  procurement training institute. They teach a city

         13  specific procurement class where a lot of this is

         14  gone through by a former agency chief contracting

         15  officer who describes that. And I guess that usually

         16  happens in the fall, but the classes, we usually --

         17  I think PTI extends an invitation to the committee

         18  in the fall.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I usually ask them

         20  if they will run a class for us.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. But we do have a

         22  class, usually the class is happening all year, if

         23  you just want to pop into one.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

         25  Lopez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This document

          3  of your testimony is fascinating, and very

          4  interesting to me.

          5                 On page eight of your testimony, the

          6  second paragraph, in that paragraph it seems to me

          7  that you make a statement that you agree with the

          8  prior speakers that quality and talent is necessary

          9  to be considered when you hire an architectural firm

         10  and the engineering firm; do you agree with that?

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: I do agree with that,

         12  and that is sort of the Procurement Policy Board

         13  rules which basically say that the competitive

         14  sealed proposal process, where we balance quality

         15  and price, but generally favor quality, is the

         16  method to be used.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then you do

         18  agree with them that creativity is also an item that

         19  had to be taken into consideration when this is

         20  looked at?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: It needs to be taken

         22  into consideration, absolutely. But I wouldn't

         23  blindly look at creativity. I would say what am I

         24  building? And I would ask the engineer that is

         25  proposing, what am I going to get that you are
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          2  creative. I mean, if Frank Lloyd Wright --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That goes

          4  without saying. I am just looking at this because I

          5  understand that it is an agreement between you and

          6  the prior speakers in regard to that.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. I am just saying

          8  I wouldn't take Frank Lloyd Wright to inspect a road

          9  renovation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just need to

         11  clarify that part.

         12                 Now, in that same paragraph, you

         13  speak about that two-thirds of the procurement were

         14  decided to be given, not to the lowest but that you

         15  decide to go with the best firm. That means that you

         16  have that data, correct?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, we have given it to

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then you can

         20  give to us who are those firms?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: We have done that. It is

         22  up there with you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It is here?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We have it.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

          4  previous speakers should get that information

          5  because it will be helpful for you to argue your

          6  point.

          7                 In regard to the last page, page ten,

          8  the first paragraph in that page, can you clarify

          9  for me what your intentions are if this bill is

         10  passed that the Mayor intends to take this to a

         11  referendum?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: I believe the Council

         13  would have to seek a referendum. I have actually not

         14  gone through the --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The only way

         16  the Council will have to take that to a referendum

         17  would be the Mayor vetoing.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: No, that is not correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No?

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then explain to

         22  me, we can override that, but the only way we

         23  override is the veto. I would like to know what is

         24  the intent of the Mayor in regard to this bill now?

         25  If this bill passed, what is the intention of the
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          2  Mayor in regard to this bill?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't know. The

          4  Administration is opposed to the bill, that I do

          5  know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if the

          7  Administration opposed the bill, I would assume that

          8  that means that the Mayor will veto the bill.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, I haven't done a

         10  study of that one either, to determine whether or

         11  not the Mayor has historically vetoed bills that the

         12  Mayor is opposed to. So I couldn't answer your

         13  question on whether or not it is likely to happen.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         15                 And the last point that I want to

         16  make is the following one: I guess that the

         17  procurement system that we have works in some ways,

         18  but I wonder if the procurement system that we have

         19  works so perfectly as you have argued, I wonder why

         20  we paid $41 million for a bunker, and I wonder why,

         21  just the day before yesterday, a couple of days ago,

         22  we approved in the City

         23  Council to pay $76 million for a ball park in Staten

         24  Island, when originally this was submitted to us for

         25  $20 million, I believe. Then something is strange
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          2  about this procurement policy that allows these

          3  things to happen, and I wonder why in those two

          4  cases the procurement policy didn't work, and I

          5  wonder if it has something to do with not having the

          6  opportunity to look more closely to a project where

          7  an architect firm and engineer firm can come and

          8  really give us the price, the real price of what

          9  these things are going to cost.

         10                 Because according to the information

         11  that was given to us, and the explanation that was

         12  given to us about the ballfield in Staten Island,

         13  was that the original price of $21 million was a

         14  shortfall because the right assessment was not made

         15  for that. It is just fascinating to me and puzzling.

         16  That's all.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Just for the record, the

         18  document that I referred to before says at the top

         19  of it Mayor's Office of Contracts, Analysis of

         20  Architectural and Engineering Contract Award,

         21  January 1997 to June 1999, and it mentions part A,

         22  part B, part C, it is this document that is on a

         23  legal-sized sheet.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Fiala, you had a
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          2  question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 Just a couple of observations here. I

          6  have looked at Intro. 523-A and my counsel has

          7  looked at it, and I read through some of the

          8  testimony that was presented today. I have to say

          9  that I think it is unfortunate that an official from

         10  the Port Authority, a quasi governmental agency,

         11  would suggest that A&E firms not be treated as just

         12  another fungible commodity.

         13                 There is no question in my mind, I

         14  have an enormous amount of respect for architects

         15  and engineers. I think they have and play a major

         16  role, and quality must be an essential factor in a

         17  contract selection process. But to suggest that

         18  child care, elder care, legal services and all of

         19  the other contracts that we award in this city to

         20  the tune of some $6 billion, are simply fungible is

         21  insulting. It is absolutely insulting.

         22                 Now, I suggest that there are three

         23  guiding principles, and I suggest this to my

         24  colleagues in the contract selection process of any

         25  municipal government. Quality, price and integrity
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          2  of the process, it has taken years to develop the

          3  procurement process, many of the reforms came

          4  through a charter revision, not too long ago, and we

          5  continue to talk about needed reforms that will make

          6  very real improvements. There is always room for

          7  improvement.

          8                 To suggest that any one of those

          9  should take precedence is misguided. We are not

         10  talking about Steve Fiala's pocketbook here. The sad

         11  reality is we are talking about taxpayer money. The

         12  current procurement process practices were designed

         13  to balance those principals. We have a fiduciary

         14  responsibility, I say this to my colleagues, for

         15  striking a proper balance between quality and price.

         16  I can tell you that if it were up to me and quality

         17  were the only thing that mattered, I would go out

         18  and buy the most expensive shoes and the most

         19  expensive suits and be running around in yachts and

         20  airplanes, but there are limitations to my

         21  resources. It seems that when we get into the realm

         22  of public dollars, those limitations are removed.

         23                 I am one of those taxpayers, we have

         24  a fiduciary responsibility to the taxpayers, there

         25  is not an endless bottomless pit here.
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          2                 On top of that, we have a moral

          3  responsibility, a moral responsibility to strike a

          4  proper balance so that we have sufficient revenues

          5  to meet as many of those pressing needs, child care

          6  and elder care included.

          7                 I don't believe Intro. 523-A strikes

          8  a balance between quality price and the integrity of

          9  the process. It sets one up as the sole qualifier.

         10  And we can't do that, we simply can't afford to do

         11  it.

         12                 I have no questions. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         14  you.

         15                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         16                 We have a representative here from

         17  the Comptroller's Office, Steven Newman.

         18                 Okay, if you would raise your right

         19  hand, please. Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         22  Correct, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Good

         25  morning. I would like to thank Kathryn Freed, Chair
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          2  of this Committee, and the other members of the

          3  Council Contract Committee, for giving us the

          4  opportunity to testify today. I am Steve Newman,

          5  First Deputy Comptroller.

          6                 As an aside, professionally I am an

          7  engineer and worked in that profession for a number

          8  of years before I joined government and went more

          9  into management.

         10                 Comptroller Hevesi regrets he could

         11  not be here and has asked me to deliver these

         12  remarks on his behalf.

         13                 The Comptroller's Office shares the

         14  Committee's desire to ensure that the City receives

         15  the highest possible quality in complex construction

         16  projects.

         17                 However, we cannot support Intro.

         18  523-A, principally because we believe the current

         19  system for procuring these services better serves

         20  that goal.

         21                 The bill is based on the flawed

         22  premise that architectural and engineering services

         23  for complex construction projects are presently

         24  procured through a bid process in which price is the

         25  primary factor.
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          2                 In fact, the converse is true,

          3  architectural and engineering services for complex

          4  construction projects are typically procured through

          5  an RFP or a negotiated acquisition process where

          6  quality, not price, is the primary factor.

          7                 We agree that price should not be a

          8  primary factor in procuring architectural and

          9  engineering services for complex construction,

         10  however, we believe it should be a factor.

         11                 With respect to RPFs, the Procurement

         12  Policy Board rules dictate how agencies are to

         13  conduct the RFP process and mandates that the

         14  process be open and fair.

         15                 Agencies must disclose the weight

         16  they accord to each evaluation criterion in an RFP

         17  including price. In practice, agencies afford more

         18  weight to the quality of these services than to

         19  price and evaluating RFPs.

         20                 With respect to engineering and

         21  architectural services procured through negotiated

         22  acquisition, quality, not price, is still the

         23  primary factor in awarding contracts, because the

         24  PPB rules require that agencies only negotiate with

         25  qualified firms.
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          2                 If the firm that an agency is

          3  negotiating with are similarly situated with respect

          4  to technical qualifications under the PPB negotiated

          5  acquisition rule, the agency can negotiate with all

          6  of those firms to obtain the best combination of

          7  quality and price.

          8                 We believe that this is appropriate

          9  where the differences in the quality of those firms

         10  are negligible. However, under the present proposed

         11  bill, an agency would be compelled to negotiate with

         12  only the highest rated of these firms, even though

         13  there is little practical difference between the

         14  technical qualifications of that firm as compared to

         15  the other competing firms.

         16                 Under that scenario, the end result

         17  very likely could be that the City pays more for

         18  services than necessary.

         19                 Additionally, there is a wide

         20  variation in the type and complexity of the

         21  architectural and engineering services the City

         22  procures. In those cases where it is determined by

         23  the agency and the Mayor's Office of Construction

         24  that the service is not complex, the City uses a

         25  pre-qualified list of firms that is deemed capable
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          2  of providing the needed services. It then selects

          3  suppliers from the list in one of two ways:

          4                 In the first alternative, the agency

          5  prepares a scope of services, randomly selects a

          6  supplier from the appropriate pre-qualified list,

          7  and then offers the contract to that supplier based

          8  on an applicable OMB fee curve.

          9                 Under the second alternative, the

         10  agency prepares an RFP and solicits technical and

         11  cost proposals from a minimum of three suppliers

         12  selected randomly or by rotation from the

         13  prequalified list.

         14                 In this case, the supplier is

         15  selected based on the best combination of technical

         16  quality and price. So, even in the case of the most

         17  non-complex service, like sidewalk inspections, the

         18  process prescribes that quality and ability are the

         19  first factors of consideration and only then does

         20  price become a selection factor.

         21                 Intro. 523 would not allow for this

         22  process which we believe is appropriate for the many

         23  non-complex architectural and engineering services

         24  that the City procures.

         25                 If the Committee or anybody else in
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          2  fact knows of specific examples where agencies are

          3  only price oriented and not quality oriented, we

          4  would be happy to work with you in looking into

          5  those specifics. But because of a particular

          6  specific issue, we should not go to change rules

          7  that should work effectively for the City.

          8                 Finally, the City procures other

          9  professional services, such as accounting, fiscal,

         10  legal and technological services through a

         11  competitive process where price is a factor. It

         12  usually is a small factor, but one nonetheless. We

         13  believe architectural and engineering services

         14  should be treated in a similar fashion.

         15                 I can tell you that within the

         16  Comptroller's Office, we contract out for a variety

         17  of professional services, we go through a rigorous

         18  RFP process, price is at most 25 percent of the

         19  criteria, quality, experience, et cetera, are the

         20  other 75 percent how they would do this specific job

         21  that we had in mind are the other 75 percent. And if

         22  it matters, I could detail a whole list of legal

         23  accounting technology projects that we have

         24  undertaken -- I won't unless you ask -- where though

         25  price was a factor, it was not the low bidder who
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          2  won, that others than the low bidder won, because it

          3  was a mixture of quality and experience and price

          4  where price was no more than 25 percent of the

          5  selection process. And even there, if they add to

          6  it, it is not that one vendor gets 25 points and

          7  everybody else gets zero because they were the low

          8  bidder, because that would drive it all towards

          9  price. One bidder gets 25 points and then everybody

         10  else's bid is prorated against that, so somebody

         11  might get 25 points and somebody else will get 24

         12  and a half, and 24, et cetera. So, price plays a

         13  role but it is a small role, and there is a quality

         14  difference or an experience difference between the

         15  firms or how they lay out they are going to do the

         16  work, that actually is for the most part what drives

         17  the process. But if we have two firms that are near

         18  equal, there is no reason why price shouldn't be the

         19  determiner.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         22                 I am going to call up the next panel.

         23  Frank McArdle, from the New York Contractors

         24  Association. Wendy Evans Joseph, from AIA,

         25  president. Janine Kourakos, from the Building
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          2  Congress, and Bernard Haber. And again, if you have

          3  written comments, please hand them out first to the

          4  Sergeant-At-Arms.

          5                 The only thing I will ask from our

          6  panel is if you can keep your remarks kind of

          7  condensed because we are running out of time. And I

          8  would also hope that some of the City people would

          9  stay around, in case there are questions.

         10                 Okay, if the panelists would raise

         11  their right hands, please.

         12                 Do you all swear to tell the truth,

         13  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. McARDLE: I do.

         15                 MS. JOSEPH: Yes.

         16                 MR. HABER: I do.

         17                 MS. KOURAKOS: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, state your

         19  name, position and go for it.

         20                 MR. McARDLE: My name is Frank

         21  McArdle. I am the Managing Director of the General

         22  Contractors Association, representing the heavy

         23  construction industry in the City. I was formerly

         24  the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental

         25  Protection, at that time was involved in both
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          2  devising the system for the selection of large scale

          3  project designers, as well as actually being

          4  responsible for the implementation of that system.

          5                 And I can speak, I think, as both a

          6  former commissioner and as a representative for

          7  contractors today in support of the legislation in

          8  front of you.

          9                 As I read the legislation, it would

         10  in fact shift the City back to the system that

         11  existed when I was a City commissioner, in which the

         12  focus in selecting firms for large projects was to

         13  get for the taxpayers in the City of New York, the

         14  best quality firm for the project, and to focus your

         15  attention on quality. I would hope that when I was

         16  selected as Commissioner by Ed Koch, in the same way

         17  that Mr. Millman was selected for his position and

         18  others are selected for City positions, that our

         19  position was not auctioned off. I hope that Ed Koch

         20  didn't have three candidates and I just happened to

         21  be the one taking it at the lowest price. That is

         22  what is proposed here.

         23                 In the outcome of purchasing on

         24  price, is that the City gets a response based on

         25  price and contractors do not believe that this
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          2  system produces the best quality proposals in plans

          3  and specifications in the City of New York. It is as

          4  simple as that. The real problem occurs when a firm,

          5  with a project selected on quality, and a project

          6  selected on price has to assign their personnel to

          7  the execution of that project, either initially or

          8  when people change during the project. And I can

          9  assure you in the same way that you would in fact

         10  assign people in things in your own life, they

         11  assign people based on what the owner wants, and if

         12  the owner wants price, that is what you get.

         13                 And unfortunately, from the

         14  perspective of my members, the change in the system,

         15  which by the way was never approved by a referendum,

         16  so why its reversal that requires a referendum,

         17  being so totally unclear.

         18                 The outcome of price-based selection

         19  has in fact, in their view, without being able to

         20  measure it, but in their perspective reduced the

         21  quality of the plans and specifications that they

         22  received from the City of New York to bid on

         23  projects. When they engage, as they do now, in

         24  considering design/build projects, they look for the

         25  quality in their architectural and engineering
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          2  partner because they know that quality is what will

          3  allow them to compete best in a design/build.

          4                 They believe that cities should

          5  revert to the system it had before, in which you

          6  could control any issues associated with favoritism

          7  and any issues associated with integrity. It was

          8  done before, it can be done now. But at the end of

          9  the day you pay professionals as professionals. You

         10  do not treat them like pencils being purchased in a

         11  corner store.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MS. KOURAKOS: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Janine Kourakos, I am Vice President of the New

         15  York Building Congress.

         16                 The New York Building Congress is a

         17  membership coalition of the design, construction and

         18  real estate community. We represent over 340 firms

         19  and organizations and more than 100,000 individuals.

         20  Our members promote responsible design and

         21  development and are committed to working with

         22  government to ensure the delivery of quality

         23  products and services. We support steps to encourage

         24  quality-based selection of design services by City

         25  agencies, and we strongly endorse Intro. 523-A.
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          2                 Our endorsement is based on two very

          3  important considerations. One, that QBS costs less

          4  in the long term, and two, that QBS is good public

          5  policy.

          6                 I think in the interest of time I am

          7  not going to read my prepared remarks, as you have

          8  heard from experts and will continue to hear from

          9  them, but I really want to make the point that this

         10  legislation enjoys broad-based support from all

         11  sectors in the industry and the Building Congress is

         12  fully committed to working with the design community

         13  and to working with the Council to make sure that

         14  this legislation becomes a reality.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MS. JOSEPH: Good morning. I am Wendy

         17  Evans Joseph, the elected president of the New York

         18  Chapter of the American Institute of Architects for

         19  the Year 2000. I am also not going to read my entire

         20  remarks but just highlight a few points.

         21                 The American Institute of Architects

         22  believes that architects and engineers should be

         23  selected for federal, state and local government

         24  work, financed primarily through federal, state or

         25  local government agencies on the basis of
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          2  professional qualifications and competence.

          3                 Architecture is part technical and

          4  part artistic. Competitive bidding requires

          5  comparison of tangible and quantifiable goods or

          6  services. This is not necessarily appropriate in the

          7  case of architects.

          8                 Architects are problem-solvers. We

          9  take the challenges of site, program, budget and

         10  schedule and work with our clients in an intensive

         11  dialogue to bring a unique physical form into being.

         12                 We find solutions to diverse and

         13  often conflicting needs. The structures and

         14  environments we design should be safe, functional,

         15  attractive and cost effective. When the City

         16  procures an architect, the scope of the work is

         17  described but not definitive. The solution which

         18  involves the creative process is unknown.

         19                 Price bidding only works when there

         20  is a clearly specified project. In the earlier

         21  testimony we heard the example of the air

         22  conditioner. Here it is really not a question of

         23  buying the air conditioner, it is really you are

         24  buying make me cold, and the way that that goes

         25  about is completely unknown.
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          2                 The architect's ability to act

          3  creatively and with experience helps to determine

          4  the exact specifications and ways to save time and

          5  money.

          6                 For example, recently there was a

          7  pedestrian bridge built at the Rockefeller

          8  University here in New York. The conventional design

          9  for the bridge came in as a construction cost of

         10  about $5 million. The architect, who incidently had

         11  never done a bridge before, created an

         12  unconventional structure that brought the cost to

         13  less than 2 million. So, here differences in fees is

         14  entirely moot.

         15                 I think that differences in

         16  architectural fees should be seen in relationship to

         17  the overall cost of the building project, in which

         18  they can be insignificant. Fees are linked to

         19  construction costs. The overall project costs

         20  include site acquisition, cost-related development,

         21  leasing, et cetera. Importantly, the costs of the

         22  building are not to these costs at the outset, but

         23  must be considered also over the life expectancy of

         24  the building.

         25                 For example, using life cycle
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          2  calculations, construction costs of a building with

          3  a 40-year life cycle expectancy would equal

          4  one-seventh of the building's total cost. The

          5  remaining six-sevenths represent ongoing maintenance

          6  and operation costs.

          7                 The question is what are the real

          8  savings to the City? Remember, we are not even

          9  talking about fees in general but we are talking

         10  about the differences between fees which can be very

         11  minimal.

         12                 In summary, the American Institute of

         13  Architects New York Chapter believes public

         14  procurement process for building a facility should

         15  be fair, open and focused on overall value,

         16  quality-based selection is essential.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         19                 MR. HABER: My testimony is prompted

         20  because I wear two hats. One is my civic hat, where

         21  I chair Community Board 11 for the past 28 years, an

         22  over the past 30 years I have chaired and

         23  participated in many New York City and State

         24  commissions, boards, agency task force and so on.

         25                 My other hat is a senior partner in a
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          2  113-year-old consulting engineer firm, 80 years of

          3  which have been in New York City. We design bridges,

          4  highways, transit systems and so on.

          5                 I live in New York City and I love

          6  this City. In my past 30 years as a community-board

          7  worker, I have been involved in almost every kind of

          8  capital construction dealing with libraries,

          9  schools, parks, bridges, highways, sewers and so on.

         10  Low bidding for A/E services started in 1999, with a

         11  1989 Charter revision and was formulated by the

         12  present PPB rules.

         13                 Prior to that time the Charter stated

         14  very clearly that price bidding was inappropriate

         15  for professional services. I can tell you from my

         16  own observation in my own community in Northern

         17  Queens that the low bid procedure now used has

         18  produced exactly what the City paid for - the lowest

         19  price with the lowest quality.

         20                 You need not go any further than look

         21  at a recent $20 million sewer project, sewer and

         22  highway project, where the construction engineering

         23  is low quality, where -- it was low bid.

         24                 A week ago I chaired a community

         25  board public hearing to allow the wrath of 200
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          2  residents be aired and have the city agencies

          3  respond to shoddy work, disregard for the residents

          4  and poor resident engineering for this particular

          5  project.

          6                 A quality engineering service, not on

          7  low bid, I believe would have prevented the rightful

          8  anger of the community that they displayed that

          9  evening.

         10                 Intro. 523-A is designed for more

         11  competitive negotiations where price is not the sole

         12  factor. PPB rules, Chapter 3, section 3-03

         13  competitive sealed proposals, in reality requires

         14  low bid. To my experience, over the past ten years

         15  is that is exactly what it is, low bid.

         16                 I want to ad lib here for a minute. A

         17  statement was made by the City that there was a

         18  million dollar difference in price between a

         19  particular design proposal. How could that be?

         20                 It is very obvious that the proposal

         21  or the proposers did not understand the scope of the

         22  work. The salaries in the industry are the same. The

         23  intelligence is the same. Sure some have more

         24  ability, some firms have more experience, more

         25  quality, but the differential is not a million
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          2  dollars. There obviously the scope was not

          3  understood by the various proposers, and that is

          4  exactly the point of 523-A. That is exactly the

          5  point, the fact that the scope has to be defined.

          6  You can't define the scope on a low bid.

          7                 It is my contention that competitive

          8  bidding for judgment services, judgment services, is

          9  not in the best interest of the public, nor the City

         10  of New York.

         11                 The best explanation why I am urging

         12  the passage of QBS legislation, was clearly stated

         13  in the American Bar Association commentary in their

         14  support for ABA model procurement, and I have

         15  attached a code to my testimony that you can read,

         16  which is exactly what the ABA stated. And by the

         17  way, those are the lawyers, and there is very little

         18  competitive bidding, if any at all, for legal

         19  services in the City of New York.

         20                 I am pretty sure when the Corp

         21  Counsel goes out for a lawyer, he doesn't say who

         22  has got the lowest price? He is going to go for a

         23  Korvath, Slain or Moore, or some top legal firm in

         24  the City of New York.

         25                 I am going to skip some of my
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          2  testimony.

          3                 In many instances competitive bidding

          4  sounds like a good idea. If you want to dig a hole

          5  and have particular specifications, you want that

          6  hole in a certain place, it does not seem necessary

          7  to survey the engineering field to make sure you

          8  find a qualified engineer.

          9                 However, most engineering and

         10  architectural projects are creative opportunities or

         11  involve sensitive requirements for public safety. In

         12  such cases the agency must wisely choose the best

         13  engineer or architect available, not the cheapest.

         14                 A good example is, the Department of

         15  Transportation came out, oh, over a year and a half,

         16  two years ago, we are -- my firm has expertise in

         17  movable bridges, and they have chosen a number of

         18  firms to do and rehabilitate the moveable bridges in

         19  New York City.

         20                 Surprisingly enough, when you look at

         21  the list of firms, many of the firms, although they

         22  were qualified in doing bridges, they were really

         23  not qualified in doing movable bridges. So, there

         24  again, the reason for that was the low bid, the

         25  price made the difference.
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          2                 Most engineering projects do not lend

          3  themselves to competitive bidding. The scope of the

          4  work required is usually difficult to define.

          5                 The engineer or architect, when he

          6  proposes, has no knowledge of the subsurface

          7  conditions for the foundation of a building or a

          8  bridge until he actually starts to work and takes

          9  the borings and does the geological studies to find

         10  out what that foundation should be.

         11                 Further, in requiring bidding, the

         12  client not being able to clearly define the project

         13  requirements will have to base his low bid selection

         14  on proposals that are not necessarily comparable in

         15  scope. And most important, the final cost of the

         16  project may be higher with a less costly design. And

         17  that is the point that should be made here more than

         18  any other point. The City failed to do that. They

         19  talked about design services. Yes, design services

         20  might go up. Might go up, I don't think they

         21  necessarily would. But in the long run the

         22  construction costs will go up, and that is where the

         23  money is.

         24                 The design engineer, as was pointed

         25  out, for a $50 million project may get two and a
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          2  half to three million dollars, but that construction

          3  cost of $50 million is a big item for the City of

          4  New York. That is where the money is saved. If you

          5  have got good engineering and quality engineering

          6  for the best part of it, quality engineer, you will

          7  save money on construction costs.

          8                 The low bidder by necessity must

          9  minimize his evaluation and studies to provide a

         10  low-cost design. It should be remembered that design

         11  services are one of the smallest elements of cost in

         12  any proposed construction.

         13                 In Maryland, the city pointed out

         14  that they feel that the cost to the city will go up

         15  by millions because of QBS. But in the State of

         16  Maryland, right after the, and some of you may not

         17  remember, you might be too young, but right after

         18  the Agnew affair, the State of Maryland introduced

         19  competitive bidding on their engineering services.

         20  It lasted for about four years. When the State, the

         21  DOT, Department of Transportation, looked at the

         22  statistics and said, you know, it is costing us $50

         23  million more because there is a tremendous amount of

         24  litigation with regard to the low-bid process,

         25  because engineers were questioning the low bid
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          2  process during that time, eventually the State of

          3  Maryland went back to QBS. Most states do have QBS.

          4  New York State has QBS. I was one of the authors of

          5  the QBS bill in New York State that was passed in

          6  1980. Let me just finish with this, that most states

          7  in the country use QBS. New York State uses QBS.

          8  Westchester County uses QBS. Connecticut uses QBS.

          9  Pennsylvania uses it. New Jersey uses it. I can go

         10  on and on. The fact is that this particular

         11  legislation will put New York City in line with

         12  everyone else in the United States, and I hope that

         13  you will carefully review my testimony and I would

         14  be most happy to have a discussion with you on this

         15  issue. I believe it is in the best interest of the

         16  City of New York.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         19  We do have some questions.

         20                 I am going to remind both questioners

         21  and answerers that we have to be out of here by 1:00

         22  and we have a lot of people who want to speak so if

         23  you can keep it short and succinct, we would

         24  appreciate it.

         25                 Council Member Lopez.
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          2                 The four of you hear the City opinion

          3  in terms of the Mayor, and the opinion of the

          4  Comptroller, and both of them seem to agree. It

          5  would be very helpful for us City Council members

          6  for you to answer to the propositions that the Mayor

          7  and the Comptroller has put forward. Not necessarily

          8  right now, but I suggest that all of you who are in

          9  favor of this particular bill come back answering

         10  the propositions that they put in their testimony,

         11  because, frankly, I am here sitting and I am

         12  listening and I am looking at what they are saying

         13  very seriously. And you need to address those

         14  comments. That is number one.

         15                 Number two, it was one particular

         16  item that called my attention in the proposition of

         17  the Mayor, particularly the issue that had to do

         18  with possible corruption. That is a serious matter,

         19  it is a serious issue, has been an issue in this

         20  City that always has been looked at, one of the main

         21  reasons why the procurement policy is in place was

         22  to make sure that corruption was minimized.

         23                 In the proposal that you are

         24  supporting, as immediately as I look at the piece of

         25  legislation, my first reaction was how this will
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          2  prevent corruption? How will being able to control

          3  that possibility from happening, and that is one

          4  question I may feel. How with this bill we would be

          5  able not to allow the process to go in that

          6  direction?

          7                 MR. McARDLE: If I might speak on that

          8  issue, because as a City commissioner, working on a

          9  system different than they have today, I acquired

         10  from some of the people in this room, quite frankly,

         11  some very large project procurement services. And we

         12  devised the system to in fact eliminate as much as

         13  we could favoritism and the possibility of

         14  corruption. We allowed the unit that was building

         15  the project that knew the most about the project to

         16  in fact create the initial criteria of selection and

         17  to evaluate the proposal that came in from the firms

         18  so that you had a ranking of the people who were

         19  responsible for the project and many projects like

         20  that in order to create a ranking of the people they

         21  felt were best. But I then created a committee of

         22  senior professional engineers from other units

         23  within DEP, other units, not in the unit responsible

         24  for the project, that then undertook the oral

         25  examination of the top five firms and created a
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          2  totally separate scoring system, and in fact that

          3  was to ensure that there was no bias in the process,

          4  that somebody who had a favorite firm could not

          5  simply make that firm selection the only one

          6  possible. And in fact, what would happen on many

          7  cases is that firms ranked number one on a technical

          8  merit scoring system would not in fact come out of

          9  the second committee as the preferred firm, because

         10  while they may have been able to satisfy people who

         11  have a bias about the project, they were not able to

         12  in fact persuade what we hoped were dispassionate

         13  senior engineers that theirs was the best proposal

         14  overall. And we felt that that process, which by the

         15  way the city then dropped in other procurements

         16  which related in problems, actually gave you a basis

         17  for the best selection process.

         18                 Then the question came as to how you

         19  negotiated the fee with the firm that you chose on

         20  quality. And at that time, and it is still the case

         21  as could be today, the City had a set of standards

         22  loosely modeled after the federal procurement

         23  guidelines, that determined how you calculated the

         24  fee for the City and what the City would pay. The

         25  City did not allow firms to cover on a City contract
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          2  all of the expenses that might be allowed under the

          3  federal rules, certain marketing fees, certain bonus

          4  arrangements were not eligible, but the City had a

          5  process that would in fact identify very clearly how

          6  firms would be compensated.

          7                 I felt the process was the best

          8  process because it allowed you in a circumstance

          9  where really both sides are trying to make a

         10  judgment about quality in its broadest sense, and

         11  particular quality about how much it is going to

         12  take you to get the best product, how many hours of

         13  talent have to be devoted to coming up with the best

         14  proposals, particularly on something as complex as

         15  the sewage treatment plant where you have many

         16  options to examine about technique and process that

         17  gave you the best chance to get the best product for

         18  the City, the product that was the most easily

         19  constructed and most likely to have the most

         20  successful operation.

         21                 We were very concerned about the

         22  corruption issue, and not simply in terms of

         23  monetary corruption, but in terms of bias built into

         24  the process and that we were very concerned about

         25  and that is why we had this two-step process, so
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          2  that somebody who had one kind of fixed idea about

          3  how to do something, or one particular sense of

          4  architectural merit couldn't dominate the process,

          5  and we did that well, and I think the firms in this

          6  room who worked with us felt that we did that very

          7  well.

          8                 Firms often got up to bat, they did

          9  not always swing well in the oral hearings.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How did the

         11  method that you describe affect the interest of time

         12  and expediency?

         13                 MR. McARDLE: It actually worked very

         14  quickly because we built that time in, and, quite

         15  frankly, we felt where it really saved the time, the

         16  point that Mr. Haber made, is during the

         17  construction and execution of the project. During

         18  the time when the community is confronted with the

         19  project, during the time when bad design and poor

         20  plans really stretch out a project for a community,

         21  we felt doing it the way we did it brought the most

         22  success to the City, both on the project and on its

         23  impact with communities.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have

         25  proof of this? Because these are -- you must
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          2  understand that your opinions are valuable to me. I

          3  respect your opinion, you are expert on this. But do

          4  you have quantifiable proof of these statements that

          5  you make?

          6                 MR. McARDLE: Part of the problem here

          7  is that there is no way to easily quantify this.

          8  Unfortunately, this is not pencils. But I would call

          9  you back, as Mr. Millman did, to the way you

         10  purchase things yourself, and, yes, we all live with

         11  budgets, but we all have things that are more

         12  important to us in some cases with quality than

         13  others, and on the things where quality is

         14  absolutely essential to us, and that gets into

         15  schooling for our children, it can get into our own

         16  health care decision. We don't, in fact, take price

         17  as the issue. We don't want to even think about

         18  price at that point, and what the City system does,

         19  it makes you think price first, and that is why

         20  people don't like the system. Contractors don't like

         21  it, the best quantification I can give you would be

         22  to put, and I think I could, all of my 120 members

         23  here in a row, and you could ask each of them which

         24  system they prefer, because they are the people who

         25  get the product of the work that is done. They are
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          2  the ones that have to take those plans and estimate

          3  for the City the cost of construction and then

          4  execute the project. Not one of them believe that

          5  selection on price as opposed to quality is what

          6  produces the best plans for them to work on. Not one

          7  of them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, Council

          9  Member Leffler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you

         11  very much for taking up this important legislation

         12  today, I appreciate it. I am sorry, I was at two

         13  events in my district earlier so I wasn't able to be

         14  here at the outset.

         15                 I don't know that you addressed the

         16  first question, which by telepathy perhaps I had the

         17  same that Council Member Lopez had, particularly

         18  with respect to services, architectural and

         19  engineering services that don't require the most

         20  skill, and the comment that with respect to services

         21  like that, the City would be paying more if it

         22  employed the quality-based selection process rather

         23  than a price centered process.

         24                 MR. McARDLE: If I could, because,

         25  again, I have bought these services, okay?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I remember.

          3                 MR. McARDLE: The City has a fee curve

          4  and the fee curve is used for what you call the less

          5  sensitive areas, okay, where supposedly the

          6  discretion and the quality is less significant than

          7  providing a professional service.

          8                 Let me tell you from my experience

          9  what happens when you work off the fee curve, okay?

         10  You get the firm at the lowest price, but you don't

         11  get the principle. It is not the people in this

         12  room, you want them to send inspectors out to the

         13  job, so they get the inspector that works at the

         14  lowest price with the qualification on hand, and you

         15  get the lowest price. You don't get the quality

         16  inspector. And I will tell you, as somebody who used

         17  to have to go chase this stuff, we would find the

         18  same poor performing inspectors getting passed

         19  around on City work. Because they wouldn't put the

         20  good inspectors on our job if they had a choice.

         21  They would give us the people at the bottom because

         22  it was all on a fee curve that really didn't yield

         23  for the firm what other methods of selection and

         24  payment did. And that is where we suffer and that is

         25  where the City suffers today.
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          2                 MR. HABER: One other explanation, a

          3  process that actually is within the City today in

          4  the DOT or the other agencies is that they do

          5  prequalify, which is fine, people who do complex

          6  jobs, moderate jobs, or small non-complex jobs. So

          7  there is a process ongoing to take care of what your

          8  questions are all about.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         10  We will have everyone back again and ask people to

         11  testify, this is only the first hearing on this

         12  bill, and we have to be out of here in a half an

         13  hour and there are a number of people who traveled

         14  to get here today who want to speak so I just want

         15  to give them a shot at speaking. We will invite you

         16  all back.

         17                 Next, Roy Commer, from Local 375. And

         18  if you have written testimony? Great.

         19                 Mr. Commer, if you could raise your

         20  right hand.

         21                 MR. COMMER: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you swear to

         23  tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         24  truth?

         25                 MR. COMMER: I so affirm.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          3                 MR. COMMER: Good morning. And I thank

          4  you very much for this opportunity to be here.

          5                 I come here representing in the first

          6  case 10,000 active and retired technical and

          7  professional employees of the City of New York, the

          8  authorities and the outside agencies where the work

          9  that we are discussing today gets done. That is not

         10  to say that all 10,000 fall under specifically

         11  architectural or engineering titles, however, a good

         12  third do. So we are talking about approximately

         13  2,000 people. So, I can say that I represent the

         14  firm of about 2,000 technical and professional

         15  employees, and I hope that if this goes through, you

         16  will apply the same principles to our contract

         17  negotiations, because that would mean that we could

         18  get paid for the quality that we provide. And I must

         19  tell you very bluntly that is not happening now, and

         20  I didn't hear one word from anybody sitting in here

         21  today up until this point about the profession.

         22  Because it is my understanding that this bill was

         23  originally begun in an effort to raise the quality

         24  and technical expertise available to raise the

         25  profession, in essence.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            123

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 And all I have been hearing is, it is

          3  the money, stupid.  It's the money. Because that is

          4  what it is. You are talking about a multi-billion

          5  dollar industry, with multiple hundreds of millions

          6  of dollars in fees.

          7                 Years ago all of this work was done

          8  in house and the City got built and it got built

          9  well, it is still standing. You are still using the

         10  subways, the bridges, all the other artifacts, and

         11  most of them are just about artifacts at this point

         12  that were designed and constructed through in-house

         13  personnel. This system of using outside entities to

         14  do the work is fairly new in the history of our

         15  city, and it originally started with a concept of

         16  being ten to 15 percent of the work to ease out

         17  those sinusoidal curves that we all know that work

         18  flows in so that we wouldn't have too much of an

         19  in-house staff. We wouldn't be wasting the public's

         20  money. Because let's not forget, as has been noted

         21  to you several times already today, that the pool of

         22  potential employees is the same for both in-house,

         23  as well as these consultants. So, the same people

         24  could be working for the City, managed by the City,

         25  cost controlled by the City directly, and what we
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          2  are doing instead, and I think that is part of why

          3  this bill is being so harshly proposed today, is

          4  that I have told this Council and other bodies, from

          5  the SCA to the Board of Ed, that I am going to be

          6  going to the feds and asking them to investigate why

          7  we are putting out work at a higher cost than we

          8  need to when we have proven we can do the work

          9  in-house. My God, our members are the ones

         10  supervising these people, do you mean to tell me we

         11  don't have as much expertise? Then why are we

         12  assigned to supervise them? I think that we do have

         13  the expertise.

         14                 So, what these folks are saying to

         15  you is, this is analogous to the medical profession.

         16  Part of me says it is true, engineers and architects

         17  are as important as doctors. We are responsible for

         18  the public safety in large numbers, but we have

         19  something in most cases during this process that

         20  doctors don't, and that is the ability to have

         21  somebody check our work before it goes out, and

         22  review it and check it. When the doctor takes that

         23  scalpel in his hand, and you are looking for the

         24  best doctor with that scalpel, you don't have time

         25  for review or check, you better get the best
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          2  quality. That is not to say we are not getting the

          3  best quality. You have a QBS system installed, in

          4  place right now. We are asking that it have stricter

          5  enforcement.

          6                 As a matter of fact, in my written

          7  testimony, which I know I am totally diverting from

          8  today, the addendum at the back, if you will read

          9  it, says on December 9th the Municipal Labor

         10  Committee, and that is a group of people

         11  representing over 300,000 employees in public and

         12  private industry, passed a resolution supporting the

         13  existing New York City Administrative Code for

         14  competitive bidding for architectural and

         15  engineering services, with strict enforcement of the

         16  Procurement Policy Board rules by City construction

         17  agencies.

         18                 I believe that part of what you heard

         19  today is those rules are not being enforced strictly

         20  enough. If the bill wants to create, if you want to

         21  revise it and create an enforcement arm for the PPB,

         22  perhaps that would help us. And I respect greatly,

         23  and I know my members do, your desire to improve the

         24  process, because that is what they do for a living.

         25  They run the process and they are the process.
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          2  Unfortunately, their participation has been reduced

          3  in some agencies to zero. The Parks Department has

          4  recently decided to farm out all of its design work

          5  and they are close to doing it with the construction

          6  end. That is what this is about, as one of your

          7  fellow members said earlier, people looking to make

          8  some more money. That is purely what this is about.

          9  You did not hear one word up until I spoke about

         10  interest in raising the level of this profession.

         11  Yes, we hide behind the quality and say, well, we

         12  need quality and therefore you should pay us more

         13  money. I have made that argument before in

         14  negotiations and I will make it again. That made it

         15  excellently for me today, all of our grievances

         16  should be one, because we have the most complex job

         17  as engineers and architects in this City and in this

         18  country and possibly the world. There is no place

         19  where you can get more spaghetti, and I don't mean

         20  in a restaurant, I am talking about out in the

         21  street, and every time we put a shovel in there we

         22  have a big job to do, and that is not to say that we

         23  don't respect people sitting in this room. We do.

         24                 But my father was honest enough, even

         25  though he could call himself a CEO or a president of
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          2  a corporation to put down on his tax form salesman.

          3  That is what you heard today, sales. You are being

          4  sold a bill of goods. It is an interesting bill of

          5  goods and I have been a consulting engineer. I had a

          6  nice, very successful firm at one time. I had been a

          7  contractor, my father was for 40 years. I have been

          8  employed by both of those types of firms, and now I

          9  worked for City government, and I am a taxpayer. And

         10  I must tell you, the current system ain't broke. You

         11  might want to fix it a little to make it better, as

         12  you are saying, but if you go away from that current

         13  system, all you are doing is allowing the budget to

         14  increase with no oversight, there is no provision in

         15  here for anybody checking on anything, they just say

         16  trust me. What I told my daughter is, if a man ever

         17  says "trust me", he is saying something else.

         18                 My father had another issue. When I

         19  asked him, why do you think that the contractors

         20  want time extensions -- you know, contractors want

         21  to finish their jobs and get out. He said to me it

         22  was the legal means of paying off the engineer,

         23  because when the contractor gets a time extension so

         24  does the engineer, so everybody makes money and the

         25  City loses. So, what did I do when I was working in
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          2  contract payments, I stopped all of the time

          3  extensions and I got transferred. Because the time

          4  extensions had no valid basis, it took them a year

          5  and a half to find reasons to give them their money.

          6                 The system is open to corruption,

          7  that has been brought out to you today. But there

          8  you have it from a man who didn't even graduate

          9  public school, but made a good business and a good

         10  life for his family because it is about money.

         11                 They claim that there is no -- I

         12  respectfully request a little more time because I

         13  don't think there is another no in the room, you are

         14  going to hear 50 yeses, please give us a little bit

         15  of time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I was just going

         17  to ask you a question.

         18                 MR. COMMER: Please. I am sorry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because I have no

         20  disagreement with what you are basically saying,

         21  which is that we should be doing more of the

         22  in-house work. Our problem is in the Council is that

         23  we can't make the Mayor and make these agencies do

         24  that. You may be able to do that. And just like we

         25  would agree, I think that you should get paid more,
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          2  you know, if the quality is there, but our problem

          3  is that we are stuck with the system where they do

          4  not do the in-house work, but they contract it out.

          5  We can't control that, all we are looking at is

          6  trying to make sure that if they do that, they get

          7  the best person for the job.

          8                 MR. COMMER: We respectfully might

          9  differ, although it might be ignorance on my part,

         10  but might not the Council, since they are

         11  considering a bill for modifying the procurement

         12  process, put in a clause that requires that unless

         13  shown that it is financially to the betterment of

         14  the City -- because I have seen so many contracts

         15  that I have spoken before this Council on where they

         16  check off the box it says, it is not to the

         17  financial advantage of the City to contract this

         18  out.

         19                 So, if we admit that we have the

         20  expertise or can have it in-house, you see sitting

         21  here earlier was a gentlemen named Riccio who used

         22  to be a Commissioner who rose up through the ranks

         23  when there was a career ladder in-house to become

         24  Commissioner of DOT, and now he works for a

         25  consultant. So I think that same brain was available
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          2  all the years he is with the City, and I think the

          3  Council does have the right to change the rules, I

          4  think that is what we are talking about today, so I

          5  guess it would be a legal question, which needs

          6  better legal mind, but let's not discount it

          7  out-of-hand, unless you know for a fact it is not

          8  legally permissible, that if you are going to do a

          9  bill, and I appreciate this opening, because I have

         10  a button here that says 90 percent, not 40 percent.

         11  They did 90 percent in a bill in Albany for SCA, I

         12  think you could do the same thing here. Excuse me,

         13  they did 60 percent, giving it out. Well, what is

         14  wrong with keeping 60 or 90 in? And then you would

         15  hire the people in-house, you would pay better

         16  quality fees to those people, you would get the best

         17  services because they would be under your control,

         18  and you would be able to decide if in fact there was

         19  a problem. Instead of having outside people who

         20  answer to you and say, oh, we will get a better

         21  person next time.

         22                 A couple of quick comments, and I am

         23  open to questions, I would love to have them.

         24                 What they are putting forward here is

         25  not having the City as the owner any longer. The
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          2  City PPB rules that agencies must carry through.

          3  When you eliminate price from the mix, you are going

          4  to create at least 15 different owners, because then

          5  every agency is going to be a separate agency

          6  judging unto itself whom and what to pick. Unless

          7  you revise the rules again.

          8                 So, you are going to have to start

          9  recreating the horse. This is just an opening salvo

         10  to eliminate competition. That is what this is

         11  about, because what you are going to end up with,

         12  and I have been a consultant, is the larger firms

         13  controlling the industry and controlling the work

         14  here in New York. That is what has happened with

         15  Waste Management.

         16                 And by the way, I have two challenges

         17  for the Mayor today, one is that he should veto the

         18  bill, and I hope you guys don't take it personally,

         19  but just the way it is drawn at the moment. And the

         20  other is, that if he is going to investigate the

         21  Mafia and the construction industry, as he promised

         22  in an article in January of '97, he is a little late

         23  but he should start it now. Because that is what my

         24  members want to do. They want to do the job, make

         25  sure it gets done at the highest quality with the
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          2  least cost. And if we don't decrease the cost to the

          3  public to this industry by eliminating the

          4  corruption which is there and get the back-up of the

          5  City when our members need it to stop it, then we

          6  are going to continue paying a lot of money. So a

          7  challenge to the Council today is to have a hearing

          8  on the construction industry here in the City and

          9  the cost of it, because these folks are raising it.

         10  They are raising the issue and they are raising the

         11  cost, and before we go forward with that I think you

         12  need to look at it.

         13                 The final point is the Economic

         14  Development Corporation. That is something else you

         15  could put a break on through this process. You might

         16  want to extend the authority, if you can, to that

         17  process. Because, frankly, for your information,

         18  what is happening is a large chunk of this

         19  construction industry is being siphoned off into the

         20  Economic Development Corporation area of

         21  responsibility. You have sidewalks being done, you

         22  have streets being done, you have small bridges

         23  being done, and the question becomes at what point

         24  will that stop and what percentage are they going to

         25  be allowed to take out of the public pie?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Again, I would like to ask that you

          3  remember the arguments presented to you here today

          4  when our negotiations come up, because I can tell

          5  you our people aren't getting paid anywhere near

          6  what these people are being paid now and saying they

          7  are not paid enough.

          8                 In closing, the bill itself has three

          9  main flaws. It states that first health and safety

         10  needs related to a project are assured, since the

         11  most qualified architectural engineering firm is

         12  selected. That is a direct slap in the face of the

         13  in-house people, because the in-house people are the

         14  supervisors for safety for the City's behalf, and

         15  they are implying that only if you have the best

         16  firm, and we are not saying you shouldn't have the

         17  best firm, but only if you increase the money

         18  available will you get safety.

         19                 The engineering staff in-house and

         20  the architectural staff are responsible licensed

         21  engineers and architects and they are responsible

         22  for the public safety.

         23                 Second, they state it is far more

         24  beneficial to first make selection of an

         25  architectural and/or engineering firm based on their
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          2  qualifications, and then discuss price once both

          3  parties have reviewed in detail -- that is exactly

          4  what we do. We are already doing it.

          5                 And third, after the necessary

          6  details of the scope of work have been fully

          7  discussed, the agency would then make its own

          8  evaluation and judgment as to a fair and reasonable

          9  price.

         10                 Later on when it gets into the

         11  details, it talks about three firms. What we are

         12  doing is we are limiting competition, and not only

         13  that, we are limiting the potential ideas. If we

         14  really want to have more ideas, as an owner, and I

         15  have been an owner also, and I left that out, I own

         16  property, I try and get as much free work, as many

         17  ideas as I can. I don't limit myself to three or

         18  four or two or one. So, the way this bill is

         19  currently structured, there are a lot of problems.

         20                 If you are going to go forward with a

         21  bill, again I ask consider putting in a percentage

         22  requirement for maintaining work in-house. I believe

         23  it is legally feasible and it will be of benefit to

         24  the City.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, we will

          3  look at that. We had advice from Counsel that it is

          4  not, but we will prepare to look at it.

          5                 The next panel up, Valentine Lehr,

          6  from the New York State Society of Professional

          7  Engineers. Richard Matino, Sam Schwartz. Dr. Sabris,

          8  from K.C. Engineering. John Manascalco. Bud Griffis,

          9  Columbia, and Husam Alman. If you have written

         10  statements, please hand them to the

         11  Sergeant-At-Arms.

         12                 Gentlemen, if you will raise your

         13  right hands. Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         14  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MR. LEHR: I do.

         16                 MR. MATINO: I do.

         17                 MR. GRIFFIS: I do.

         18                 MR. ALMAN: I do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Please proceed.

         20                 MR. LEHR: Thank you, Madam Chair. My

         21  name is Valentine Lehr, I am the senior partner of

         22  Lehr Associations Consulting Engineers. We are an

         23  international consulting firm specializing in

         24  mechanical and electrical engineering. I have also

         25  been past president of the New York Association of
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          2  Consulting Engineers, and past National Director of

          3  the American Consulting Engineers Council, and a

          4  30-year member of the New York State Society of

          5  Professional Engineers. I am also at the moment the

          6  United States delegate to Fepac (phonetic), which is

          7  the Pan American Association of Consulting

          8  Engineers, and I am appearing today in support of

          9  the bill.

         10                 You have in front of you my prepared

         11  remarks. Unfortunately, when you come late in the

         12  program, those remarks tend to be somewhat redundant

         13  on points that have been covered and agreed, and

         14  consequently with your permission I am going to

         15  deviate a bit from that, because I really want to

         16  address some of the issues which we have heard about

         17  a little bit earlier here today.

         18                 For example, we heard from the

         19  Mayor's Office of the Budget about the fact that we

         20  have the quality-based program in place. Now, I want

         21  to point out that many of my colleagues from the New

         22  York Association of Consulting Engineers you heard

         23  of today do primarily most of their work in the

         24  public sector. My firm does not. We do most of our

         25  work in the private sector. However, we do do a
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          2  significant amount of public sector work.

          3                 And so the question really that was

          4  raised is do we have a quality-based selection

          5  program in place? Well, we heard about some high

          6  profile cases, and certainly when you listen to the

          7  details it sounds as though we have quality-based

          8  selection in place. But the fact of the matter is

          9  those were all for the most part dealing with

         10  architectural firms and for the most part what

         11  happens is qualifications are determined by a

         12  prequalification basis, and that prequalification is

         13  the most general of qualifications. We filled out

         14  all of the prequalification forms and those things

         15  establish a general level of qualification in a

         16  general area. They do not detail the specific

         17  qualifications that are part of a specific project.

         18                 When we deal in the private sector in

         19  quality-based selection, we address the specific

         20  unique factors of a particular project, and we talk

         21  about how we can use our specific expertise and that

         22  is the kind of qualification which the engineering

         23  community in very much interested in competing on

         24  and that is not what happened.

         25                 We also heard quite a bit in those
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          2  presentations about costs, and that is also quite

          3  interesting. I was very interested in the numbers

          4  that were given out and I would like an opportunity

          5  to examine that.

          6                 But I would like to point out at the

          7  same time that every person who provides proposals

          8  for public jobs in the City of New York knows that

          9  cost is in fact a factor. And when you submit the

         10  proposal, those proposals already know that and

         11  address it. So, consequently when you later begin to

         12  analyze the information which has been presented,

         13  there is more than a little suspicion that what has

         14  happened is the results you are getting are somewhat

         15  biased by virtue of the fact that the initial

         16  proposals were already slanted for realization that

         17  cost was a prime factor.

         18                 Is quality-based selection more

         19  costly? Councilman Fiala pointed out very carefully

         20  that he didn't want to spend any more money and I

         21  share that, because I am not in the business of

         22  wanting to spend any more of my money on projects,

         23  and I think that is a good objective. But what does

         24  more costly mean? Does more costly mean only

         25  engineering? Well, engineering is a small portion of
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          2  the whole project. There is the construction issues

          3  and the life cycling issues, and what it costs you

          4  at the end of 20 or 30 or 50 years. That is what is

          5  more important, and that is what has to be

          6  addressed.

          7                 A little bit earlier we heard the

          8  very nice analogy about the shopping cart, and I

          9  think that we also heard how that was of great

         10  interest, it was a fascinating thing about how does

         11  New York shop, what about the shopping cart? Well,

         12  let me ask the question, how does New York shop?

         13  Certainly the $6 billion that is associated with the

         14  City budget is nothing to sneeze at, but that isn't

         15  the biggest part of the economy in this town, the

         16  private sector is. And how does the private sector

         17  shop? The private sector shops essentially on

         18  quality-based selection. When we send out proposals

         19  in the private sector, what we do is we give our

         20  qualifications specific detail to projects. When the

         21  owners realize that they have made a selection on

         22  who they want best, then we discuss price. That is

         23  how New York shops, and that is how they do it. And

         24  I have got to tell you that as driven as the City is

         25  in preserving the financial security of the thing
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          2  and then watching what they spend, the private

          3  sector is totally financially driven, and that is

          4  the mechanism which they use.

          5                 The history of quality-based

          6  selection is history of superior projects of

          7  innovation, of design, which is really something

          8  spectacular, and that is a win/win situation for all

          9  parts. On behalf of myself and the associations,

         10  organizations which I represent, I truly urge a

         11  favorable movement on this bill.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. Next.

         14                 MR. MATINO: My name is Richard

         15  Matino. I am currently employed as the Deputy

         16  Director for the Parsons Transportation Group. Prior

         17  to that I spent 32 years in State government where I

         18  think in almost every case we used quality-based

         19  selection.

         20                 I am here on behalf of Samuel I.

         21  Schwartz, a former City DOT employee, and now

         22  engaged in his own firm, and I am reading his

         23  testimony, and I will read it in the first person.

         24                 I am an adjunct professor at the

         25  Engineer at Cooper Union and Director of its
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          2  Infrastructure Institute. I am also president of the

          3  Sam Schwartz Company, an engineering and

          4  architectural firm here in New York City, and I am

          5  speaking in support of Intro. 523-A.

          6                 To put it simply - you get what you

          7  pay for. Low bids are absolutely appropriate in most

          8  cases when you have a well-defined task as in

          9  construction or in the provision of services, such

         10  as office cleaning or the supply of goods.

         11                 However, when it comes to engineering

         12  and architectural services, you want someone who

         13  will allow you to get the most for your dollar

         14  during the construction and operational phase of a

         15  public work. This requires creativity, experience,

         16  maturity, drive and sometimes genius. The selection

         17  of these individuals are teams to be based on

         18  quality, or should be based on quality and merit of

         19  the proposal and the team. Cost should be reviewed

         20  after the selection and an acceptable fee

         21  negotiated. The result of the City will be better

         22  products for less money when one includes the cost

         23  of construction.

         24                 As a former chief engineer of the

         25  City of New York Transportation Department, I
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          2  strongly urge the Council to pass Intro. 523-A.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. Next.

          5                 MR. GRIFFIS: Madam Chair, I am Bud

          6  Griffis, Professor of Construction at Columbia

          7  University. Thank you very much for the opportunity

          8  to testify, and I will briefly just cover a little

          9  bit of my testimony and let you read the rest.

         10                 My brief testimony today is based on

         11  three sets of experiences, in the matter of

         12  quality-based selection of consultants for

         13  professional services.

         14                 First, I would like to base my

         15  testimony on my service with the U.S. Army Corps of

         16  Engineers for 26 years, when we were bound by the

         17  Brooks Bill and in my testimony I talk about how it

         18  works, why it works, the advantages and

         19  disadvantages.

         20                 Secondly, I base my testimony on the

         21  fact that I was president of the Metropolitan

         22  Section of the American Society of Civil Engineers,

         23  and up until October of this year I was the national

         24  director of ASCE, and this body that represents

         25  125,000 civil engineers has as its policy to support
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          2  quality-based selections.

          3                 And third, the rest of my testimony

          4  which you can read is based on my experience as a

          5  consultant to City agencies in the past 15 years,

          6  where I witnessed the result basis of the low bid

          7  requirements selection.

          8                 Now, what I would like to do

          9  specifically is to clarify an issue I think and that

         10  is the fact that the PPB regulations are righteous,

         11  and that they want to have quality selection.  Now,

         12  having supervised on the federal level my selection

         13  boards using the Brooks Bill, let me tell you the

         14  City has a difficult task in that even though price

         15  may be written down as only a five percent factor in

         16  the selection. If the price of all are known, price

         17  will become the predominant selector because it is

         18  the most difficult to refute. What I see the

         19  advantages of Intro. 523-A is, that it requires you

         20  to open only one, until negotiations are initiated

         21  you only open one price, and that is the difference

         22  between the current selection procedure which should

         23  be quality based, in theory is quality based, in

         24  practice is not quality based as low bid because all

         25  prices are open for the board to see initially.
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          2                 Under this bill you could only open

          3  one envelope and it should be not price -- should

          4  not be the overriding factor.

          5                 Thank you, Madam Chair. You can read

          6  the rest of my testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

          8  you.

          9                 Our final witness.

         10                 MR. ALMAN: I am Husam Alman,

         11  president of Haks Engineers, a New York-based

         12  consulting firm of 125 people. We are consulting

         13  engineers and construction managers. We do a lot of

         14  business with the City of New York. At the present

         15  time we are in contract with many projects for the

         16  City of New York for professional services for

         17  bridge and highway projects.

         18                 I am in favor of the quality-based

         19  selection process, and the reason is quite simple.

         20  You have heard of all of the testimonies, I believe

         21  that the City will be selling in construction

         22  dollars as a result of quality-based selection, the

         23  City will receive the best possible professional

         24  services at all times, and it will ensure the safety

         25  of the public to the highest degree.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 Are there any questions?

          6                 Okay, just for the record, I have a

          7  number of things to read into the record. Gentleman,

          8  thank you.

          9                 First, we have a letter from Good

         10  Reich Engineering, P.C., in favor of the

         11  legislation.

         12                 Volmer Associates, in favor.

         13                 Goodkind and Odey, in favor.

         14                 Hardesty and Hanover LLP Consulting

         15  Engineers, in favor.

         16                 The Queens County Farm Museum, which

         17  actually talks about -- it is kind of interesting,

         18  it raises some of the questions about

         19  not-for-profits that hopefully will go into when we

         20  have our next hearing on this.

         21                 And a statement of the American

         22  Society of Civil Engineers, in favor.

         23                 Okay, thank you very much. That ends

         24  this hearing.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:02 p.m.)
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